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·1· · · · · · ·BE IT REMEMBERED that on Tuesday, October 19, 2021,

·2· ·at the hour of 8:35 a.m. of said day, at the Nevada State Board

·3· ·of Medical Examiners, 9600 Gateway Drive, Reno, Nevada, before

·4· ·me, Lesley A. Clarkson, certified court reporter, the following

·5· ·proceedings were had:

·6· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · -o0o-

·7

·8· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER:· We are going to go ahead and go on

·9· ·the record in the matter of charges and complaint against Tammy

10· ·Lynn Hankins, PA-C.· This is the time and date of the hearing on

11· ·this matter, of the evidentiary hearing, October 19, 2021.· The

12· ·hearing was to commence at 8:30 a.m.· It is now 8:35.

13· · · · · · ·I want to note for the record that I previously heard

14· ·the substance of this matter through a previous summary

15· ·suspension hearing that took place on September 20, 2021, and

16· ·order continuing summary suspension was filed on September 28,

17· ·2021.

18· · · · · · ·With that, can you please state your appearance,

19· ·Mr. Fricke.

20· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· Yes.· Thank you.· Aaron Fricke, general

21· ·counsel for the Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners on behalf

22· ·of the investigative committee of the board.

23· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER:· And I don't think I called the case

24· ·number.· The case number is 21-51633-1.· And this is being

25· ·recorded today.
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·1· · · · · · ·Thank you, Mr. Fricke.· Go ahead.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· Thank you.· So as a preliminary matter,

·3· ·I'd like to note for the record of our hearing today that at a

·4· ·prior hearing on September 20 Exhibits 1 through 37, which are

·5· ·physical exhibits that are contained in the binder that is before

·6· ·you.· We also have those exhibits available for the respondent if

·7· ·she were to appear.· I'd like to note for the record that I

·8· ·believe she has not appeared.· Is that correct?· She's not in the

·9· ·room?

10· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER:· That is correct, she is not here.

11· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· And we have also admitted Exhibits 38

12· ·through 58, which are a series of videos that were downloaded

13· ·from social media of Vida Spa where the respondent was practicing

14· ·during the dates and times at issue in this, in the first amended

15· ·complaint.

16· · · · · · ·With that, I believe I don't intend to put on any more

17· ·evidence.· I have reviewed the, your order that emerged from the

18· ·summary suspension hearing and the transcript of that hearing.

19· ·And I believe with, and I also note for the record that the

20· ·record of the case, which is contained in the binder before you,

21· ·Miss Hall, contains 19 items, and evidences all of the proof of

22· ·service of Miss Hankins in this matter and all of that evidence.

23· ·So that's before you.

24· · · · · · ·So I would like to close our record presentation of our

25· ·case and proceed to closing argument, which would be a very
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·1· ·abbreviated summation or recapitulation of the allegations.  I

·2· ·believe you are well aware of the record and you have very likely

·3· ·all that you need to determine we have met our burden.· And so

·4· ·I'd like to probably proceed to that if that's okay.

·5· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you.· Let's start with putting

·6· ·on the record Miss Hankins' notice of today's hearing and whether

·7· ·or not that's been properly given.

·8· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· Thank you.· So I would just start by

·9· ·saying, noting some important dates.· March 6, 2020, Miss Hankins

10· ·appeared before the board for initial licensure in the state.

11· ·She had no license before that date.· If you look at Exhibit 20,

12· ·there are minutes of that meeting where it's self-evident what

13· ·Miss Hankins is trying to do, which is to get a license.

14· · · · · · ·In June of 2021, this year, just four months ago, Miss

15· ·Hankins actually renewed her license to practice medicine in the

16· ·state.· And during, and as part of that renewal, she made her

17· ·averment of her license pursuant to NRS 630.254, which requires

18· ·that every licensee maintain a permanent mailing address with the

19· ·board to which all communications to the board from the licensee

20· ·must be sent.· Quoting from that statute.

21· · · · · · ·Literally the next day after that license renewal was

22· ·issued, and based upon that averment or certification as to her

23· ·mailing address, the IC filed its formal complaint on June 25,

24· ·2021.

25· · · · · · ·As the record reflects, that complaint and all other
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·1· ·necessary filings and notices were sent to Miss Hankins' Lake

·2· ·Havasu City, Arizona, address, which we believe is her residence

·3· ·in Lake Havasu City.· And on July 20, 2021, the IC filed its

·4· ·first amended complaint and issued its order of summary

·5· ·suspension, again serving both of those at the Lake Havasu City

·6· ·address.· All other required notices and orders have been served

·7· ·on that address by certified mail.

·8· · · · · · ·So with that, I would offer that the record

·9· ·demonstrates that Miss Hankins has been provided due and proper

10· ·notice of this hearing today and of all of the necessary

11· ·proceedings.· And again I'd like to do what we did before, I'd

12· ·like to note for the record that she has failed to appear.

13· · · · · · ·I believe we have made an offer of proof that she's

14· ·received sufficient legal notice, and I move that the board

15· ·accept the allegations in the complaint as true pursuant to NRS

16· ·622A.350, first that we can continue the hearing as Miss Hankins

17· ·received legal notice pursuant to sub 2 of that statute, that the

18· ·board may accept the allegations against Miss Hankins as true as

19· ·alleged in the charging document, which is the first amended

20· ·complaint.

21· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER:· So I will note that prior filings

22· ·have been sent certified.· I do have the hearing date and have

23· ·been noted as delivered, and there's evidence in the record of

24· ·that.

25· · · · · · ·I don't know if I got a proof of service for the order
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·1· ·continuing summary suspension.· Was that --

·2· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· And I apologize for that.· We received

·3· ·that about two weeks ago, and our legal assistant, Miss Fuentes,

·4· ·broke her hand about a week and a half ago, and I'm not sure if

·5· ·that has been sent yet.

·6· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER:· So you don't know if it's been

·7· ·certified mail to Miss Hankins yet?

·8· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· I believe it has been.· I haven't seen,

·9· ·that hasn't been placed in the record in front of you.· But

10· ·that's just the order continuing the summary suspension.· I'm

11· ·certain that it's been sent, at least I believe that it has been,

12· ·but it's not in the record at the moment.

13· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER:· Well, the only reason I ask is

14· ·because it's just another of many documents that state the

15· ·hearing date.· So that's the only reason.· But she obviously has

16· ·notice of the hearing as you have indicated, and I'll find that

17· ·she does.· I'll note for the record that she is not here.· I take

18· ·from your statement she has also not appeared in the Las Vegas

19· ·office nor had any contact with you about intending to appear

20· ·today.· I have not had any contact with her, nor has a

21· ·continuation of this hearing been requested nor granted from me.

22· · · · · · ·Is there anything else before I move on to your

23· ·preliminary matter with the exhibits and the prior hearing being

24· ·considered for today's ruling?

25· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· No.· Thank you.
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·1· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER:· So as you noted, NRS 622A.350,

·2· ·section 2, provides if the licensee fails to appear at a hearing,

·3· ·the regulatory body or hearing panel or officer may accept the

·4· ·allegations against the licensee in the charging document as

·5· ·true.· The administrative code 630.470, section 2, also provides

·6· ·if a licensee fails to appear at a scheduled hearing, no

·7· ·continuance has been requested and granted, the evidence may be

·8· ·heard, and the matter may be considered and disposed of on the

·9· ·basis of evidence before the board panel or hearing officer in

10· ·the manner required by this section.

11· · · · · · ·As Mr. Fricke had pointed out, there was a prior

12· ·suspension hearing where several exhibits were admitted and

13· ·evidence was presented to this hearing officer upon which a

14· ·summary suspension order was issued by which the suspension was

15· ·continued for purposes of today's hearing.

16· · · · · · ·I will confirm that Exhibits 1 through 58 -- it was 58,

17· ·correct, Mr. Fricke?

18· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· That's correct.

19· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER:· Will be considered for today's

20· ·purposes, as well as the transcript of that proceeding and all

21· ·testimony given.· So in other words, to be clear, everything from

22· ·that hearing will be incorporated and referred with regard to

23· ·today's proceedings, a ruling will be issued in light of the

24· ·statute and what was priorly presented.

25· · · · · · ·And you wanted to give a closing, Mr. Fricke?
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· Yes.· Thank you.· And I appreciate your

·2· ·very orderly handling of this extraordinary matter, Miss Halstead

·3· ·and keeping us straight and making sure our record is clear,

·4· ·which is always what we are here to do.

·5· · · · · · ·This is a very unfortunate case.· We are here to make a

·6· ·record of certain violations of the medical practices act.· NRS

·7· ·630.346, sub 2, requires that finding of the board must be

·8· ·supported by a preponderance of the evidence.· The IC's

·9· ·allegations in this case are not supported by a mere

10· ·preponderance of the evidence but by clear and convincing and

11· ·totally uncontroverted evidence.

12· · · · · · ·Miss Friedman, senior investigator for the board, at

13· ·the summary suspension hearing gave lengthy, detailed, compelling

14· ·evidence to the extent that it's necessary to supplement the

15· ·already abundance of evidence that we have in documentary form,

16· ·as well as the video evidence, that establishes substantial proof

17· ·of the IC's allegations.

18· · · · · · ·The IC's first amended complaint contains 53 counts in

19· ·all, and I submit to you all of those counts are established in

20· ·the record.· I won't go through every, all 53, because I believe

21· ·that you can read the documents and the board can review those as

22· ·well, as well as watch the videos if it's necessary.· But I will

23· ·summarize the presentation of those documents to you.

24· · · · · · ·For example, if we look at Exhibit 1, which are medical

25· ·records for Patient A in this case, if we look at Exhibit 1, page
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·1· ·1, you will see an operative report authored and signed by Miss

·2· ·Hankins and also signed later, as Miss Friedman testified, and as

·3· ·Mr., I'm sorry, Dr. Borromeo acknowledged in his response to the

·4· ·board's allegations, by Dr. Borromeo on page 2.

·5· · · · · · ·On page 3 you will see the prescription instructions,

·6· ·again detailing point by point the prescription of narcotic for

·7· ·the purposes of analgesia and anesthesia and sedation for an

·8· ·invasive surgical procedure as described again on page 1, which

·9· ·was a liposuction the arms of this patient.· On page 3, the

10· ·bottom, that note again is signed by Miss Hankins.

11· · · · · · ·Skipping forward to page 18, past the other medical

12· ·records of that patient, on page 18 you will see the PMP report

13· ·for this patient.· Again the PMP gathered independently from the

14· ·information reported to it by a pharmacy that dispenses

15· ·medications.· Here in this PMP on page, let's see, on page 24,

16· ·you will see those controlled substances, Diazapam and tramadol,

17· ·being dispensed by this Walgreens pharmacy.

18· · · · · · ·On page 28 you will see dispensing records from the

19· ·custodian of records of the Walgreens.· Again this comes from

20· ·records of Walgreens.· On page 28 you will see those medications,

21· ·tramadol, Diazapam, promethazine, and a sulfa drug, which is

22· ·Bactrim antibiotic, being dispensed to this patient.· Again on

23· ·page 39 of Exhibit 1 you will see the actual physical scrips that

24· ·were called in and recorded.

25· · · · · · ·We have similar evidence for every single patient that
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·1· ·details Miss Hankins' practicing medicine without a license,

·2· ·perforce also without a supervising physician, committing

·3· ·malpractice, committing conduct which is disreputable, and

·4· ·fraudulently prescribing Schedule 4 controlled substances.

·5· · · · · · ·Those are Counts 1, 2, 3, and 4:· Unlicensed practice,

·6· ·1; malpractice, 2; fraudulent prescribing of controlled

·7· ·substances; and disreputable conduct.

·8· · · · · · ·As Miss Friedman testified, we have even more patients

·9· ·than the dozen or so patients that are, we have offered evidence

10· ·of.

11· · · · · · ·Similarly I'd like to direct your attention to Count 21

12· ·and 22, which is illegal injection of Botox, and Count 22, with

13· ·respect to VERSA, which is another injectable which requires,

14· ·which by law needs to be done by a licensed practitioner.

15· · · · · · ·If you look at Exhibit 6, page 146, you will actually

16· ·see a treatment record signed by Miss Hankins.· Again note the

17· ·date, 10/24/19, October 24, 2019, for the patient noted as

18· ·Patient F in the patient designation.· You also, if you turn to

19· ·page 142, you will see a billing printout for this patient that

20· ·was produced by Vida Spa showing the amounts charged to the

21· ·patient.

22· · · · · · ·And then if you skip to page, I'm sorry, to Exhibit 20,

23· ·I'm sorry, not Exhibit 20, Exhibit 13.· At Exhibit 13, page 272,

24· ·you see the daily procedure log which Miss Friedman testified to

25· ·receiving from Vida Spa.· And though Vida Spa did not disclose we
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·1· ·believe all the daily procedures Miss Hankins provided, this is

·2· ·an independent account of the procedures at least since October

·3· ·15, 2019.· And you will see at the bottom of the page, two thirds

·4· ·down, you will see on 10/24/2019 Patient F, initials JR, the

·5· ·billing and the fee charged, $250 and $499 respectively for the

·6· ·Botox and the filler tear trough.

·7· · · · · · ·So moving on to Exhibit 20.· You will see evidence of

·8· ·Miss Hankins' fraudulent, fraud and misrepresentation in

·9· ·obtaining a license.· Miss Friedman testified as being present

10· ·via video conference at that meeting.· She recalled details of

11· ·the discussion, but the minutes are enough.· The minutes

12· ·establish that Miss Hankins knew very well she didn't have a

13· ·license to practice, that she oughtn't be practicing.· Her

14· ·history is in Arizona, and her felony convictions placed her on

15· ·notice that she needed to be obviously licensed to practice.· And

16· ·it's, the record demonstrates that Miss Hankins lied to the board

17· ·in an open meeting.· And subsequently she received cease and

18· ·desist letters from pharmacy boards, Vida Spa's license was

19· ·suspended and eventually revoked.· That's not in the record, but

20· ·subsequent to this meeting I'll offer it's a matter of public

21· ·notice that Vida Spa now ceased to exist as a going business.

22· · · · · · ·And the other patient records demonstrate that, all

23· ·similar to the records of Patient A, that Miss Hankins

24· ·administered narcotics, opioids and benzodiazepines for the

25· ·administration of conscious sedation at Vida Spa, which is, as
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·1· ·the record demonstrates, was a cosmetic facility, cosmetic

·2· ·establishment, I'm sorry, not licensed by the bureau of health

·3· ·care quality and compliance to a facility where you can offer

·4· ·sedation or general anesthesia.· She repeatedly performed

·5· ·dangerous cosmetic surgeries, including liposuction of the

·6· ·abdomen and arms, as well as fat grafting procedures.· She did so

·7· ·first without a license and then with a license but without a

·8· ·supervising physician.· I could go on and on with respect to the

·9· ·individual counts.

10· · · · · · ·Lastly, the reason for the IC's first amended complaint

11· ·was the addition of Counts 52 and 53, which are a continual

12· ·failure to practice medicine properly and a knowing and willful

13· ·failure to comply with an order of the investigative committee.

14· ·Proof of those counts, to the extent that it's necessary to have

15· ·additional proof, are found in the allegation letters and proof

16· ·of service that were sent to Miss Hankins.· And those can be

17· ·found, getting ahead of myself, beginning at Exhibit 30, then

18· ·again 32, 33, 34, correspondence with the respondent at her email

19· ·address on file with the board; Exhibit 34, additional allegation

20· ·letters; 35 would be the subpoenas sent to Vida Spa; and on to

21· ·37.

22· · · · · · ·So Miss Hankins impeded our investigation by failing to

23· ·meet her professional responsibilities to cooperate and respond

24· ·to the IC's order for her to respond.· We proceeded, the IC

25· ·proceeded anyway as it could.· Again as Miss Friedman testified,
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·1· ·we were investigating very serious bodily harm allegedly done to

·2· ·one of Miss Hankins' patients.· And we had to rely on third

·3· ·parties, including Dr. Borromeo and Dr. Washington, for evidence

·4· ·to get records.· We had to depend upon Vida Spa, which although

·5· ·it's a business, Vida Spa, it's a medical practice, so we had to

·6· ·issue subpoenas to them and to obtain records.· This is highly

·7· ·irregular, a highly irregular way to conduct a professional

·8· ·practice, a highly irregular way to conduct oneself in the

·9· ·practice of medicine.

10· · · · · · ·I would just close that it is one of the most egregious

11· ·cases, and I don't think it's necessary for me to embellish.· The

12· ·record I think is replete with evidence that Miss Hankins ought

13· ·not to have a license.· And although we will get to what

14· ·sanctions we would wish the board to impose, I would submit to

15· ·you, Miss Halstead, that our case is proven.· And I'd, Miss

16· ·Hankins is not here.

17· · · · · · ·If you have any reservations, I would be happy to take

18· ·any questions you have.

19· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you.· And I know you somewhat

20· ·have done this.· I want you to continue just a little more

21· ·specifically so it will help me when I go to draft my order.· The

22· ·first amended complaint filed July 20, 2021, is organized by

23· ·patient, correct, as far as the counts?

24· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· Yes, largely it is.· The counts are first

25· ·by patient, then there are counts -- I'm sorry.· So that's
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·1· ·basically pages 1 through 35.· Then on page 36 there's

·2· ·allegations with respect to fraud and misrepresentation in

·3· ·obtaining a license.· And then you will see another set of

·4· ·patients, which is Patient I through Patient L, I believe.  I

·5· ·through L.· And then those patients would be patients that Miss

·6· ·Hankins treated after she received a license but before she

·7· ·obtained and got a supervising physician.

·8· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER:· So this is a problem I'm going to

·9· ·have when I go through it, because I have to analyze each

10· ·individual count, right?· And when we had this prior hearing, we

11· ·did an overall view, you know, we did, I don't know what those

12· ·terms are.· When you are in an airplane and you look down and you

13· ·have this overall view, you know, should she have her license in

14· ·the meantime.· But for this particular findings and

15· ·recommendations I'm going to have to go through each specific

16· ·count.

17· · · · · · ·So what I'm getting at is if I'm looking for things to

18· ·do with Patient A and then I'm looking for things to do with

19· ·Patient B, I'm going to have to spend a lot of time going through

20· ·the exhibits trying to identify these patients and seeing where

21· ·that is substantiated, because that's not what we focused on in

22· ·the prior hearing.

23· · · · · · ·So if you -- go ahead.

24· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· If I may.· The record, the exhibits are

25· ·organized, you know, 1 through 12 are Patient A through L.
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·1· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you.· You are going exactly

·2· ·where I want you to go.· Thank you.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· Thank you.· And thank you for the

·4· ·opportunity.· So with respect to counts, I could start at the

·5· ·beginning, with respect to Count 1 through 34, Counts 1 through

·6· ·34 are Patient A through -- let's see.· It's noted right there in

·7· ·the count -- A through H, which would be Exhibits 1 through 8.

·8· ·All of the records that are necessary.· So we have the specific

·9· ·patient records, and then you have obviously the supporting

10· ·evidence contained in the exhibits regarding when she was

11· ·licensed, et cetera, and so that shouldn't be difficult to find.

12· · · · · · ·Then Exhibit 20 is the minutes of the meeting where she

13· ·obtained her license.· And then you have Miss Friedman's

14· ·testimony on that, again the supporting documentation showing

15· ·that she received her license, as well as an attempt at locating

16· ·a supervising physician.

17· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER:· Which counts?

18· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· So those would be with respect to the

19· ·fraud in obtaining a license, that would be Count --

20· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER:· Count 35?

21· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· 35.· And then we commence again with

22· ·Patient I, as in India, and that would be Count 36 through 51,

23· ·which are Patients I through L.· And those records are found in

24· ·Exhibits 9 through 12.

25· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you so much.
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·1· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· Again, the other records that we have all

·2· ·sort of supplement and compliment the patient records, the actual

·3· ·patient records of the actual treatment.· Because again we have

·4· ·at Exhibit 13, as we have already mentioned, the daily procedure

·5· ·log which corroborates the patient records.· We have Exhibit 20,

·6· ·the public meeting where she retained her license.· We have got a

·7· ·public license, Exhibit 21, the public licensing information.· We

·8· ·have other communications that were sent to, from the pharmacy

·9· ·board.· We have the response, at Exhibit 24, Exhibits 2 and 26

10· ·and 27 responses from Drs. Washington and Borromeo.· Exhibit 28,

11· ·we have additional detail information on Miss Hankins' licensure,

12· ·and Exhibit 29, the supervising agreement from Dr. Borromeo,

13· ·which gives you a time certain where Miss Hankins actually had a

14· ·supervising physician in all of these events, obviously with

15· ·regarding to her practicing without a supervising physician

16· ·occurred before that time.· So we have a pretty clear timeline in

17· ·that respect.

18· · · · · · ·Lastly, we have Counts 52 and 53.· I would say that the

19· ·proof for Count 52 is found throughout the record.· Miss Hankins

20· ·has demonstrated both in Arizona and in Nevada an inability to

21· ·practice medicine properly and safely, which would be a

22· ·continual, and a continual failure to do so.

23· · · · · · ·And then the evidence for Count 53 is found

24· ·specifically in those communications from our investigators,

25· ·Exhibit 30, 31, 32, 33, and 34.· And then 35, 36, 37 were the

http://www.litigationservices.com
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·1· ·subpoenas that we had to send to Vida Spa to get the records that

·2· ·Miss Hankins should have provided to us.

·3· · · · · · ·I think that's probably what you were looking for, I

·4· ·hope.

·5· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER:· It is.· Thank you.· I haven't started

·6· ·writing yet, but this is going to help me tremendously.

·7· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· Wonderful.· You know, we here at the

·8· ·board, our investigators, and I know that the attorneys are

·9· ·committed to first the patient safety, but also to the well-being

10· ·of our practitioners.· I see my job as first and foremost being

11· ·to help physicians live happy, healthy lives while fulfilling

12· ·their professional responsibilities and trying to find that

13· ·balance.· I believe Miss Hankins has demonstrated herself unable

14· ·to strike that balance, and she has placed patients in danger.

15· ·And as the evidence demonstrates, she's actually harmed patients

16· ·in the state by failing to do what the law requires.

17· · · · · · ·And so with that, I would rest our case.

18· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER:· Then with that, I will take the

19· ·matter under advisement for the issuance of findings and

20· ·recommendations, which I have 60 days from today to do, and then

21· ·I will provide those to you.· I know I have 60 days.· This is

22· ·October, September, November, I think your next meeting is in

23· ·December, correct?

24· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· Yes, it is.

25· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER:· So then it will be, the timing will

http://www.litigationservices.com
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·1· ·work out well.· I won't be too rushed.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· We usually close the lid on it a couple of

·3· ·weeks in advance, but if it doesn't get done a couple of weeks in

·4· ·advance, that's perfectly fine, we can put it on a later meeting.

·5· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you so much.· I appreciate your

·6· ·time today.

·7· · · · · · ·MR. FRICKE:· Thank you, Miss Halstead.

·8· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER:· We will be off the record.

·9· · · · · · · · · (9:15 a.m., proceedings concluded.)

10· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · -o0o-
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·1· ·STATE OF NEVADA,· · )

·2· · · · · · · · · · · ·)

·3· ·COUNTY OF WASHOE.· ·)

·4

·5· · · · · · ·I, LESLEY A. CLARKSON, Certified Court Reporter for the

·6· ·State of Nevada, do hereby certify:

·7· · · · · · ·That on Tuesday, October 19, 2021, I was present and

·8· ·took stenotype notes of the proceedings entitled herein, and

·9· ·thereafter transcribed the same into typewriting as herein

10· ·appears;

11· · · · · · · That the foregoing transcript is a full, true and

12· ·correct transcript of my stenotype notes of said proceedings.

13· · · · · · · Dated at Reno, Nevada, this 27th day of

14· ·October, 2021.

15· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·___________________________

16· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·Lesley A. Clarkson, CCR #182

17
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22

23

24

25
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·1· · · HEALTH INFORMATION PRIVACY & SECURITY: CAUTIONARY NOTICE

·2· Litigation Services is committed to compliance with applicable federal

·3· and state laws and regulations (“Privacy Laws”) governing the

·4· protection andsecurity of patient health information.Notice is

·5· herebygiven to all parties that transcripts of depositions and legal

·6· proceedings, and transcript exhibits, may contain patient health

·7· information that is protected from unauthorized access, use and

·8· disclosure by Privacy Laws. Litigation Services requires that access,

·9· maintenance, use, and disclosure (including but not limited to

10· electronic database maintenance and access, storage, distribution/

11· dissemination and communication) of transcripts/exhibits containing

12· patient information be performed in compliance with Privacy Laws.

13· No transcript or exhibit containing protected patient health

14· information may be further disclosed except as permitted by Privacy

15· Laws. Litigation Services expects that all parties, parties’

16· attorneys, and their HIPAA Business Associates and Subcontractors will

17· make every reasonable effort to protect and secure patient health

18· information, and to comply with applicable Privacy Law mandates,

19· including but not limited to restrictions on access, storage, use, and

20· disclosure (sharing) of transcripts and transcript exhibits, and

21· applying “minimum necessary” standards where appropriate. It is

22 recommended that your office review its policies regarding sharing of

23 transcripts and exhibits - including access, storage, use, and

24· disclosure - for compliance with Privacy Laws.

25· · · · © All Rights Reserved. Litigation Services (rev. 6/1/2019)
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https://nsbme.us.thentiacloud.net/webs/nsbme/register/#/profile/hankins/0/20/5fd29a2db952d61efc79780f 1/2

Specialties

Specialty

Physician Assistant

Education History

Institution Degree/Certificate Date Enrolled Date To

Olivet College / Olivet, MI Bachelor of Arts N/A May-09-1993

Western Michigan University /
Kalamazoo, MI

Bachelor of Science N/A Dec-12-1998

Western Michigan University /
Kalamazoo, MI

Physician Assistant Degree Sep-01-1996 Dec-12-1998

License History

License Type License Status Effective Date

Physician Assistant Suspended Jul-26-2021

Physician Assistant Summarily Suspended Jul-26-2021

Physician Assistant Active Jun-28-2021

Board Actions

Summary Attachments

COMPLAINT    Case No. 21-51633-1    June 25, 2021

The Investigative Committee of the Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners filed a formal Complaint against Tammy Lynn
Hankins, PA-C, alleging fifty-two (52) violations of the Nevada Revised Statues of (NRS), Chapter 630:  NRS 630.400(1)(d) - 8
counts NRS 630.301(4) - 12 Counts NRS 630.301(9) - 12 Counts NRS 630.3062(1)(h) - 5 Counts NRS 630.306(1)(u) - 5
Counts NRS 630.306(1)(o) - 4 Counts NRS 630.304(1) - 1 Count NRS 630.306(1)(g) - 4 Counts NRS 630.380(1)(c)

Complaint:  fifty-six (56) pages

 

 Complaint - 21-
51633-1.pdf
(/rest/public/data/downloadannotation/index.php?
id=60de1ec904f436158a5ebb68&entity=$2y$10$63VbNQrO4qVKIUDKhVtbw

Tammy Lynn HANKINS
License Number: PA2277

License Type: Physician Assistant

License Status: Suspended

Initial License Date: Mar-06-2020

Expiration Date: Jun-30-2023

Public Address: 3753 Cherry Tree Blvd

Public City: Lake Havasu City

Public State: Arizona

Public ZIP Code: 86406

Public Country: United States

Public Phone Number: 5202405241

Powered by Thentia Cloud (https://www.thentia.com)

NSBME 0322

https://nsbme.us.thentiacloud.net/rest/public/data/downloadannotation/index.php?id=60de1ec904f436158a5ebb68&entity=$2y$10$63VbNQrO4qVKIUDKhVtbw.dh9CrrU.zz/lIqkv3KXsW.45tonJlIy
https://www.thentia.com/
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Note:

Summary Attachments

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT    Case No. 21-51633-1    July 20, 2021

The Investigative Committee of the Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners filed a formal Complaint against Tammy Lynn
Hankins, PA-C, alleging fifty-three (53) violations of the Nevada Medical Practice Acts, including:  eight (8) counts of NRS
630.400(1)(d), Unlicensed Practice of Medicine, Counts I, V, IX, XIII, XVII, XXIII, XXVIII and XXXII; twelve (12) counts of NRS
630.301(4) Malpractice, Counts II, VI, X, XIV, XVIII, XXIV, XXIX, XXXIII, XXXVII, XLI, XLV and XLIX; five (5) counts of NRS
630.3062(1)(h) Fraudulent, Illegal, Unauthorized and Otherwise Inappropriate Prescribing of Schedule IV Controlled
Substance, Counts III, VII, XI, XV, XIX; twelve (12) counts of NRS 630.301(9) Disreputable Conduct, Counts IV, VIII, XII, XVI,
XX, XXV, XXX, XXXIV, XXXIX, XLIII, XLVII and LI; two (2) counts of NRS 630.306(1)(u) Illegal Injection of Botox or Xeomin,
Counts XXI and XXVI; three (3) counts of NRS 630.306(1)(u) Illegal Injection of Versa, Counts XXII, XXVII and XXXI; one (1)
count of NRS 630.304(1) Fraud and Misrepresentation in Obtaining a License, Count XXXV; four (4) counts of NAC
630.380(1)(c) Performing Medical Services Without A Supervising Physician, Counts XXIV, XL, XLIV and XLVIII; four (4)
counts of NRS 360.306(1)(o) Administration of Conscious Sedation at an Unaccredited and Unpermitted Facility, Counts
XXXVIII, XLII, XLVI and L; one (1) count of NRS 630.306(1)(g) Continual Failure to Practice Medicine Properly, Count LII; and
one (1) count of NRS 630.3065(2)(a) Knowing or Willful Failure to Comply with an Order of the Investigative Committee, Count
LIII.  

First Amended Complaint:  fifty-six (56) pages.

 First Amended
Complaint - 21-51633-
1.pdf
(/rest/public/data/downloadannotation/index.php?
id=60ff2b6704f436158a149b58&entity=$2y$10$YJIsj.ubqVqCowL21DX2J.eF

ORDER OF SUMMARY SUSPENSION    Case No. 21-51633-1    July 20, 2021

The Investigative Committee of the Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners summarily suspended Tammy Lynn Hankins,
PA-C, license to practice medicine in the State of Nevada pursuant to Nevada Revised Statute 630.326(1).

Order: three (3) pages.

 Order of Summary
Suspension - 21-
51633-1.pdf
(/rest/public/data/downloadannotation/index.php?
id=60ff2caf81edb53d2a834422&entity=$2y$10$PMsuG.6wal/CW./BiRPn2uX

Current Employment Status / Conditions / Restrictions on License / Prior Malpractice Claims

This physician assistant does not have a current medical doctor supervising physician
associated with this license and therefore may not practice
clinically.

Summary Attachments

None.

NSBME 0323

https://nsbme.us.thentiacloud.net/rest/public/data/downloadannotation/index.php?id=60ff2b6704f436158a149b58&entity=$2y$10$YJIsj.ubqVqCowL21DX2J.eF.Vq81.WfQE76VtxcXxah6YCF9m/lm
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ENTITY INFORMATION

ENTITY INFORMATION

REGISTERED AGENT INFORMATION

Entity Name:

VIDA SPA LLC

Entity Number:

E0325412016-3

Entity Type:

Domestic Limited-Liability Company (86)

Entity Status:

Active

Formation Date:

07/22/2016

NV Business ID:

NV20161430784

Termination Date:

Perpetual

Annual Report Due Date:

7/31/2022

Series LLC:

Restricted LLC:

NSBME 0324
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Page 1 of 1, records 1 to 1 of 1

Title Name Address
Last
Updated Status

Manager GISSELLE
PLATFOOT

3225 S. RAINBOW BLVD, Suite 206, Las Vegas, NV,
89146, USA

07/30/2021 Active

Filing History 
 Name History 
 Mergers/Conversions

Name of Individual or Legal Entity:

COOPER COONS, LTD

Status:

Active

CRA Agent Entity Type:

Registered Agent Type:

Commercial Registered Agent

NV Business ID:

NV20121752051

Office or Position:

Jurisdiction:

CLARK COUNTY

Street Address:

10655 PARK RUN DR STE 130, Las Vegas, NV, 89144, USA

Mailing Address:

Individual with Authority to Act:

Fictitious Website or Domain Name:

OFFICER INFORMATION

  VIEW HISTORICAL DATA

NSBME 0325
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Return to Search 
 Return to Results

NSBME 0326
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FILING HISTORY

ENTITY INFORMATION

FILING HISTORY DETAILS

Entity Name:

VIDA SPA LLC

Entity Number:

E0325412016-3

Entity Type:

Domestic Limited-Liability Company (86)

Entity Status:

Active

Formation Date:

07/22/2016

NV Business ID:

NV20161430784

Termination Date:

Perpetual

Annual Report Due Date:

7/31/2022

Series LLC:

Restricted LLC:

NSBME 0327
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Page 1 of 1, records 1 to 7 of 7

Page 1 of 1, records 1 to 1 of 1

File Date
Effective
Date Filing Number Document Type

Amendment
Type Source View

07/30/2021 07/30/2021 20211646403 Annual List External  

07/24/2020 07/24/2020 20200805546 Annual List External  

07/25/2019 07/25/2019 20190060994 Annual List External  

07/24/2018 07/24/2018 20180326110-
24

Annual List External  

07/13/2017 07/13/2017 20170300205-
00

Annual List External  

07/22/2016 07/22/2016 20160324669-
89

Initial List External  

07/22/2016 07/22/2016 20160324667-
67

Articles of Organization External  

FILING DATE SNAPSHOT AS OF: 07/25/2019

Date Title Name Attention Address1/Address2/City/State/Zip/Country

07/24/2018 Manager GISSELLE
PLATFOOT

3225 S. RAINBOW, LAS VEGAS, NV, 89146,
USA

Back 
 Return to Search 
 Return to Results

Business Details Name Changes Principal Office Registered Agent

Officer Information Shares

NSBME 0328
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https://blepay.clarkcountynv.gov/bleligibility/BusinessLicenseDetails.asp?ID=2187792 1/1

Business License Detail Information

License Number: 2003447.081-172 

MJBL Number:  

Business:
Vida Spa, LLC
3225 S Rainbow Blvd
Las Vegas, NV 89146
 

Business Telephone: (937) 638-9684 

License Category: Cosmetology Establishment - Other Services 

Status: License Suspended
 

Date of License: 12/21/2016 

Out of Business Date:  

Business Owner(s)

Art Matrix, Inc.
Platfoot, Gisselle

Return to Previous Page 
Return to Business License Database Search Options

NSBME 0329
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NEVADASTATEBOARDOFPHARMACY 

March 24, 2021 

VIA CERTIFIED AND U.S. MAIL 

Vida Spa LLC 
Ms. Gisselle Platfoot 
3225 S. Rainbow Boulevard, Suite 107 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 

985 D.imonte Ranch Parkway- Suite 206 • Reno, NV 89521 

(775) 850-14-W • 1-800-364-2081 • FAX (775) 850-144-1-

• Web Page: bop.nv.gov 

Re: CEASE and DESIST/CITATION: Unlicensed Practice (Case No. 20-210) 

Dear Ms. Platfoot: 

The Nevada State Board of Pharmacy (''BOP") has determined that you are possessing, 
administering, prescribing and/or dispensing controlled substances and/or dangerous drugs for Nevada 
patients from your company in violation of federal and state law. Specifically, you do not have a 
dispensing registration. You are prohibited from possessing, dispensing and/or administering controlled 
substances and/or dangerous drugs. 

You have violated, attempted to violate, assisted or abetted in the violation of or conspired to 
violate, without limitation, NRS 453.226, NRS 453.316, NRS 453.32l(l)(a), NRS 453.331 
(l)(c)(d)(f)&(i), NRS 453.381(1), NRS 453.401(l)(a), NRS 639.0727, NRS 639.100(1), NRS 639.23505, 
NRS 639.281, NRS 639.2813, NRS 639.310, NAC 639.742, 21 U.S.C. § 822(a)(2), 21 U.S.C. § 823(f), 
21 U.S.C. § 841(a), 21 U.S.C. § 842(a), 21 U.S.C. § 846 and 21 CFR §§ 1306.03-1306.05. 

You are hereby ordered pursuant to NRS 639.2895(1) to immediately CEASE and DESIST 
possessing, administering, prescribing and/or dispensing controlled substances for Nevada patients from 
your practice. This letter shall serve as a CITATION pursuant to NRS 639.2895(2) for your unlicensed 
practice. The Board has assessed you an administrative fine of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) pursuant 
to NRS 639 .2895(3). 

You must pay this administrative fine within 30 days of receipt of this citation, or otherwise 
contact Board staff to request an alternative payment plan. Payment must be by cashier's check, certified 
check or money order made payable to "State of Nevada, Office of the Treasurer," to be received at the 
Board's Reno office, located at 985 Damonte Ranch Parkway -Suite 206, Reno, NV 89521. 

You have the right to appeal this citation by submitting a written request for a hearing to the 
Board at the Board's Reno office no later than 30 days after receipt of this letter. See NRS 639.2895(2). 

Please be aware that the foregoing does not preclude a formal investigation or filing of criminal 
charges. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at 775-850-1440 or 
c.lee@,iharmacy.nv.gov. 

Sincerely, 

General Counsel 
Nevada State Board of Pharmacy 

9171 9690 0935 0252 0543 15 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I certify that I am an employee of the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy, and that on this 

25th day of March, 2021, I served a true and correct copy of the foregoing document by Certified 

U.S. Mail to the following: 

VidaSpaLLC 
Ms. Gisselle Platfoot 
3225 S. Rainbow Boulevard, Suite 107 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 /~ A52 

KRISTOPHER MANGOSING 
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NEV ADA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY 

March 24, 2021 

VIA CERTIFIED AND U.S. MAIL 

 
 

 

985 Damonte Ranch Parkway - Suite 206 • Reno, NV 89521 . 

(775) 850-1440 • 1-800-364-2081 • FAX (775) 850-1444 

• Web Page: bop.nv.gov 

Tammy Hank.ins, PA-C 
3753 Cherry Tree Boulevard 
Lake Havasu City, AZ 86406 

Re: CEASE and DESIST/CITATION: Unlicensed Practice (Case No. 20-210) 

Dear Ms. Hankins: 

The Nevada State Board of Pharmacy ("BOP") has determined that you are possessing, 
administering, prescribing and/or dispensing controlled substances and/or dangerous drugs for Nevada 
patients from your practice in violation of federal and state law. Specifically, you do not have a controlled 
substance registration. You are prohibited from possessing and/or administering controlled substances 
and/or dangerous drugs. 

You have violated, attempted to violate, assisted or abetted in the violation of or conspired to 
violate, without limitation, NRS 453.226, NRS 453.316, NRS 453.32l(l)(a), NRS 453.331 
(l)(c)(d)(f)&(i), NRS 453.381(1), NRS 453.40I(l)(a), NRS 639.100(1), NRS 639.23505, NRS 639.281, 
NRS 639.2813, NRS 639.310, 21 U.S.C. § 822(a)(2), 21 U.S.C. § 823(f), 21 U.S.C. § 84l(a), 21 U.S.C. § 
842(a), 21 U.S.C. § 846 and 21 CFR §§ 1306.03-1306.05. 

You are hereby ordered pursuant to NRS 639.2895(1) to immediately CEASE and DESIST 
possessing, administering, prescribing and/or dispensing controlled substances for Nevada patients from 
your practice. This letter shall serve as a CITATION pursuant to NRS 639.2895(2) for your unlicensed 
practice. The Board has assessed you an administrative fine of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) pursuant 
to NRS 639.2895(3). 

You must pay this administrative fine within 30 days of receipt of this citation, or otherwise 
contact Board staff to request an alternative payment plan. Payment must be by cashier's check, certified 
check or money order made payable to "State of Nevada, Office of the Treasurer," to be received at the 
Board's Reno office, located at 985 Damonte Ranch Parkway-Suite 206, Reno, NV 89521. 

You have the right to appeal this citation by submitting a written request for a hearing to the 
Board at the Board's Reno office no later than 30 days after receipt of this letter. See NRS 639.2895(2). 

Please be aware that the foregoing does not preclude a formal investigation or filing of criminal 
charges. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at 775-850-1440 or 
c.lee@pharmacy.nv.gov. 

,r-<¥~·~ 
Sincerely, 

General Counsel 
Nevada State Board of Pharmacy 

9171 9690 0935 0252 0542 92 
9171 9690 0935 0252 0543 08 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I certify that I am an employee of the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy, and that on this 

25th day of March, 2021, I served a true and correct copy of the foregoing document by Certified 

U.S. Mail to the following: 

Tammy Hankins, PA-C 
 

  

Tammy Hankins, PA-C 
3753 Cherry Tree Boulevard 
Lake Havasu City, AZ 86406 

A 
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NEV ADA STATE BOARD OF PHARMACY 

985 Darnonte Ranch Parkway - Suite 206 • Reno, NV 89521 

(775) 850-1440 • 1-800-364-2081 • FAX (775) 850-1444 

March 24, 2021 

VIA CERTIFIED AND U.S. MAIL 

Mary Anne Phillips, M.D. 
10620 Southern Highlands Parkway, #110251 
Las Vegas, NV 89102 

• Web Page: bop.nv.gov 

MaryAnne Phillips, M.D. 
 

 

Re: CEASE and DESIST/CITATION: Unlicensed Practice (Case No. 20-210) 

Dear Dr. Phillips: 

The Nevada State Board of Pharmacy ("BOP") has determined that you are possessing, 
administering, prescribing and/or dispensing controlled substances and dangerous drugs for Nevada 
patients from your practice in violation of federal and state law. Specifically, your controlled substance 
registration was suspended. You are prohibited from possessing and/or administering controlled 
substances. 

You have violated, attempted to violate, assisted or abetted in the violation of or conspired to 
violate, without limitation, NRS 453.226, NRS 453.316, NRS 453.321(1)(a), NRS 453.331 
(l)(c)(d)(f)&(i), NRS 453.381(1), NRS 453.401(l)(a), NRS 639.100(1), NRS 639.23505, NRS 639.281, 
NRS 639.2813, NRS 639.310, 21 U.S.C. § 822(a)(2), 21 U.S.C. § 823(f), 21 U.S.C. § 841(a), 21 U.S.C. § 
842(a), 21 U.S.C. § 846 and 21 CPR§§ 1306.03-1306.05. 

You are hereby ordered pursuant to NRS 639.2895(1) to immediately CEASE and DESIST 
possessing, administering, prescribing and/or dispensing controlled substances for Nevada patients from 
your practice. This letter shall serve as a CITATION pursuant to NRS 639.2895(2) for your unlicensed 
practice. The Board has assessed you an administrative fine of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) pursuant 
to NRS 639.2895(3). 

You must pay this administrative fine within 30 days of receipt of this citation, or otherwise 
contact Board staff to request an alternative payment plan. Payment must be by cashier's check, certified 
check or money order made payable to "State of Nevada, Office of the Treasurer," to be received at the 
Board's Reno office, located at 985 Damonte Ranch Parkway-Suite 206, Reno, NV 89521. 

You have the right to appeal this citation by submitting a written request for a hearing to the 
Board at the Board's Reno office no later than 30 days after receipt of this letter. See NRS 639.2895(2). 

Please be aware that the foregoing does not preclude a formal investigation or filing of criminal 
charges. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at 775-850-1440 or 
c .lee@'.phannacy .n v .gov. 

Sincerely, 

General Counsel 
Nevada State Board of Pharmacy 

9171969009350252054278 
9171 9690 0935 0252 0542 85 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I certify that I am an employee of the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy, and that on this 

25th day of March, 2021, I served a true and correct copy of the foregoing document by Certified 

U.S. Mail to the following: 

MaryAnne Phillips, M.D. 
10620 Southern Highlands Parkway, # 110251 
Las Vegas, NV 89102 

Mary Anne Phillips, M.D. 
 

 ~J22 . 
KRISTOPHER MANGOSING 
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EXHIBIT 25 



Sherman Washington, JR. MD 

2900 N. Green Valley Parkway #114 

Henderson , NV, 89014 

November 16, 2020 

RE: Case #20-19721 

Patient  

Patient  

Patient  

To the Medical Board: 

In response to your October 28, 2020 request I am providing answers to each allegation. 

Allegation #1 - It is correct that I became the medical director for Vida Spa on or about September 

9, 2019. 

Allegation #2 -While I was the medical director for Vida Spa, I became a supervising doctor for Ms. 

Hankins. I was told by Vida Spa and by Ms. Hankins that she was a licensed PA-C. I agreed to 

become her supervising doctor based upon fraudulent information I was given about her license 

status. I provided all the paperwork regarding my request to supervise Ms. Hankins to the Medical 

Board and the request to supervise Ms. Hankins was approved. 

While I agreed to supervise Ms. Hankins, I specifically told both Vida Spa and Ms. Hankins that she 

could not perform any procedures until she provided proof that she was working within her scope. 

requested the following things; letters from her prior supervising doctor, proof of her current 

license, completion of a liposuction certification, proof that she passed practical procedure tests. I 

was assured I would receive all requested documents. After 30 days, I did not receive any of the 

requested material and I therefore rescinded my agreement to supervise Ms. Hankins. In addition, 

due to their intentional misrepresentation, I also stopped being the medical director for Vida Spa on 

November 1, 2019. I was the medical director for less than 60 days. 

I never authorized Ms. Hankins to perform liposuction or any other procedures. I was not aware 

that Ms. Hankins performed liposuction procedures on or about October 2019. I never signed any 

charts for Ms. Hankins and was not present during any procedures she performed. I was not 

consulted regarding any procedures Ms. Hankins performed or participated in during my 

directorship. 

Allegation #3 - I did not authorize Ms. Hankins or Vida Spa to prescribe controlled substances on 

my behalf for any patients. 

Allegation #4 j- Management assured me that the office was zoned for the medical procedures performed . 

The previous Surgeon was performing Liposuction and Botox at the same location 
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Recipient Name 

November 16, 2020 

Page 2 

Allegation #5 -I never agreed for Tammy to perform Botox because I never got a letter from her 

supervising MD. 

Records request - I do not have access to medical records, charts or x-rays for , 

 or . There were not my patients and I did not authorize any of their 

procedures to be performed. 

Sincerely, 

Sherman Washington, JR. MD 
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Kim A. Friedman 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Dr Sherman washington  
Monday, November 16, 2020 2:00 PM 
Kim A. Friedman 
Severed ties with Vida Spas as Tammy's Supervising MD. She failed to bring documentation 

1 
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t' 
( 

March 26, 2021 

RE: Bl\,fE Case #20-19721 

( 

MOJAVE HEART AND VASCULAR GROUP 
801 S. RANCHO DRIVE Suite A2 LAS VEGAS, NV 89106 
Office Number: (702) 480- 3630 Fax: (800) 579-9591 

To: Kim Friedman, CMBI, Senior Investigator 
Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners 
6010 S. Rainbow Blvd, Bldg. A, Ste. 2 
Las Vegas, NV 89118 

Dear Kim Friedman, 

My apologies for the delay in responding your previous correspondence and the Board's Order to Produce 
Health Care Records. Both were apparently sent to my previous office located on Charleston Blvd and was 
never forwarded to my new address. I have now had a chance to review them and can provide the following 
responses to each of the allegations in your letters as requested. 

/ 
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March 26, 2021 

RE: BME Case #20-19721 

To: Don Andreas 
Sr. Investigator 
Las Vegas Office 

( 

MOJAVE HEART AND VASCULAR GROUP 
801 S. RANCHO DRIVE Suite A2 LAS VEGAS, NV 89106 
Office Number: (702) 480- 3630 Fax: (800) 579-9591 

NV State Board of Medical Examiners 

325. E. Warm Springs Road #225 
Las Vegas, NV 89119 
702-486-3338 Office 
775-848-0831 Cell 
702-486-3301 Fax 

Dear Mr. Don Andreas, 

Here are my responses to the Board regarding the specific allegations made in your correspondence involving the multiple patients in 
the foregoing case: 

1. I am unaware when Tammy Hankins was issued her license to practice medicine. 

2. In May of 2020, I was supervising licensed Nurse Practitioners at the Wound Care Department of Centennial Hospital when I was 
asked to speak with the owner of a spa called "Vida Spa". I was told they were looking for a "Medical Director", to act in a consulting 
role. I was also told that they were a spa that only handled NON-INVASIVE cosmetic procedures. I was of the understanding that the 
spa itself was already in operation, and that both they and their staff were already properly licensed. Finally, I was also told that the 
position of "Medical Director" would only require one day a month or less of my time in exchange for a monthly payment of $3,000.00. 
After meeting with the owner, I agreed to commit one day a month to this position. I was told it would involve supervising their staff on 
that particular day in order to give my assessments and opinions, answer any of their questions, address procedures, and review and 
discuss patient files. The position as it was described to me did not involve seeing any patients myself or prescribing any 
pharmaceuticals. I signed a written agreement they provided to me on May 29, 2020, however I did not receive any payment nor did 
we agree on when I would schedule my first in-person visit. 

3. They presented to me a supervising physician agreement to sign for P.A. Tammy Hankins on June 1, 2020, which I thought was 
odd, but more of a formality at the time based on what had been represented to me and the fact that they only performed non-invasive 
procedures. 

After recognizing that I had been misled, I ended my relationship with Vida Spa in less than a month, and told the owner of the Spa 
that I was terminating all agreements on or arounp July 1, 2020. 

4. Pursuant to the agreement, they were to keep all medical records at their facility. My role was supposed to be limited to that of a 
consultant, and it was my understanding that the cosmetic procedures were non-invasive ones that were being performed by properly 
licensed individuals. In addition, we did not discuss to me writing or authorizing any prescriptions, so I presumed they already had 
someone who was doing so if needed. I had agreed to be paid $3,000.00 per month for what I believed was going to be one day per 
month of consultation work at their Spa. We did not yet agree as to a start date when I would come in for my first visit, and I had not 
yet received any compensation from them. 

5. I was told that the Spa was already been in operation before I signed any agreement. I was also told they employed a licensed 
Physician's Assistant and Nurse Practitioner, so I assumed they already were maintaining proper procedures with respect to the 
handling and dispensing of any controlled substances. But once again, even though I had just signed their agreement, we had not yet 
agreed upon a start date for me to make my first in-person visit to their facility. 

NSBME 0341



The day I signed the supervision agreement, on June 1st, I was surprised to receive a phone call from said licensed Physician's 
Assistant, Ms. Hankins, and asked to authorize a prescription on her behalf. This was not supposed to be part of my duties as Medical 
Director. However, since Ms. Hankins was a licensed P.A., and she told me she had examined and evaluated the patient in person, I 
presumed both Ms. Hankins and the Spa were following appropriate procedures for dispensation of medication. I therefore authorized 
this prescription for her, as well as a number of other prescriptions in the couple of weeks afterwards during the month of June, 2020 
pending my first visit to the facility. I think it should be noted, however, that June, 2020 was also the height of the COVID pandemic, 
when everyone was highly concerned about the virus' transmission. At most medical facilities, there were protocols in place to ensure 
as little direct contact as possible. At Centennial Hospital, where I was supervising a number of N.P.'s, it was (and still is) protocol for 
Doctors to be permitted to authorize prescriptions strictly based upon the representations made by licensed NP's, without ever directly 
examining the patients ourselves (I confirmed this with my supervisor, who is the Program Director of Advanced Wound Care Center 
at Centennial Hospital). This limits contact, and helps minimize the spread of COVID. Since this was the protocol being used at 
Centennial Hospital Wound Care Center, I presumed it was also acceptable protocol at the time to authorize the prescriptions 
requested by Ms. Hankins, who was herself a duly licensed P.A. who presented to me that she had seen and examined the patients in 
person herself. 

6. In no way was I trying to assist an unlicensed person to engage in the practice of medicine. I was told this spa only handled non­
invasive cosmetic procedures that were within the scope and licensing of those who were performing them. 

a, b, c, d, e. I had no knowledge at the time that Ms. Hankins was performing invasive liposuction procedures on patients. 

7. I had no knowledge of any procedures that were being performed at a location that was not a properly licensed facility. We did not 
yet agree as to a start date when I would come to do my first in-person consultation. 

1. We did not have a written termination agreement. I terminated my agreement in a telephone call sometime on or before July 1, 
2020. 

2. It was the height of the COVID pandemic, and as mentioned previously, protocols were in place to limit doctor/patient exposure. I 
was relying upon the representations made by a 
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licensed Physician's Assistant, which I believed at the time were sufficient. The scope of my 
engagement as Medical Director was supposed to be limited, and the agreement they asked me 
to sign provided for the Spa to maintain all medical records. Again, it was my understanding at 

time I agreed to act as Medical Director that these were all non-invasive procedures 
performed by qualified individuals in a licensed facility. 

3. other than authorizing the prescriptions for patients as specifically requested by Ms. Hankins, 
I have and had NO business or financial relationship with Santa r1.faria Pharmacy. 

4. I have and had received NO compensation from or for patient specific controlled substance 
prescriptions I wrote for Vida Spa patients. 

Sincerely, £ / J 
,<~~)J~--Salvlr Borromeo, Ill MD 
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01/05/2021 

Dena McClish, Investigator Nevada State Board of Pharmacy 
1050 E. Flamingo rd, Suite E217, Las Vegas NV 89119 
Office: 702-486-6420 Ext. 154 Fax: 702-486-7903 
Email: dmcclish@pharmacy.nv.gov 

Re: Nevada Board of Pharmacy Investigative Case 20-211 

Dear Ms. McClish, 

While acting as the Medical Director for Vida Spa for the month of June 2020, I have prescribed 
controlled substances for their patients that will undergo invasive procedures as part of their 
conscious sedation and pain control. The prescription for these controlled substances were given to 
me with the name of the individual patients with corresponding medications and doses written by 
the Vida Spa's nurse or medical assistant for my approval and signature. These are patients that are 
scheduled to undergo procedures for the following day. The written prescriptions are then brought 
to Pharmacy Santa Maria which delivers the medications to the Vida Spa location. The medications 
which are accepted by the Vida Spa facility are then administered to the patient shortly before the 
scheduled procedure. This is done by the nurse assisting with the procedure or by Dr. Mary Anne 
Phillips who is employed by Vida Spa. The medications especially the controlled substances are 
stored in a secured and locked cabinet. Medications that are unused are disposed into the red­
colored sharp containers which include medications for patients that have cancelled their 
procedures. 

Included with this letter are copies of the charts of patients who received the controlled substances 
that I have prescribed. Please free to contact me for further information. 

Mojave Heart and Vascular Group: 

-A2 South Rancho Drive. Las Vegas NV 89106 USA (702) 824-2307 Eax (800) 579-9591 
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13 
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16 
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18 

19 

20 

21 

22 
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25 

26 

27 

28 

Before the Board of Medical Examiners of the State of Nevada 

Investigative Committee 

***** 

In the Matter of the Investigation of: ) 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Tammy Hankins, P A-C 

License No. P A2277 

Case No. 20-19721 

SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM 

The Investigative Committee of the Board of Medical Examiners of the State of Nevada sends 

greetings to: 
Vida Spa, LLC 
Or Authorized Representative 
3255 S. Rainbow Blvd., #107 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 

Pursuant to the authority of NRS 630.140(1), WE COMMAND YOU, that all singular, 

business and excuses being set aside; you shall produce and deliver to the Nevada State Board of 

Medical Examiners, the materials as set forth in this Subpoena Duces Tecum: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 
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6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

16. 

17. 

18. 

19. 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

. Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 
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20. Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

21. Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

22. Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of  

23. Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

24. Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

25. Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

26. 

27. 

28. 

29. 

30. 

31. 

32. 

33. 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to. 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to. 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to. 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to. 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 
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25 
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34. 

35. 

36. 

37. 

38. 

39. 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

40. Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

41. Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

42. Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

43. Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

44. 

45. 

46. 

47. 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

NSBME 0391



1 

2 

3 

4 
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9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

48. 

49. 

50. 

51. 

52. 

53. 

54. 

55. 

56. 

57. 

58. 

59. 

60. 

61. 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of  

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 
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62. Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

63. Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

64. Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

65. Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

66. Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

67. Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

68. Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of  .. 

69. Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

70. Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to. 

include billing records, of . 

71. Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to. 

include billing records, of . 

72. Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to. 

include billing records, of . 

73. Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to. 

include billing records, of . 

74. 

75. 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to. 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 
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8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

76. 

77. 

78. 

79. 

80. 

81. 

82. 

83. 

84. 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all health care records, to 

include billing records, of . 

Properly authenticated and complete copies of any and all patient names and DOB's 

18 for any and all patients treated, and/or prescribed to, by Cornell Calinescu, M.D. 

19 Said records shall be provided to an investigator of the Nevada State Board of Medical 

20 Examiners within 5 days of service of this subpoena delivered to The Nevada 

21 State Board of Medical Examiners located at 325 E. Warm Springs Road, Suite 225, Las Vegas, 

22 NV 89119. Failure to comply and produce said records in the aforesaid manner may subject you to 

23 possible disciplinary action, to include NRS 630.3065(2)(a); further the Investigative Committee 

24 may seek relief as provided in NRS 630.140(3). 

25 Additionally, compliance with this subpoena is deemed compulsory and shall not be deemed 

26 to be cooperation subject to the protections provided to a physician pursuant to NRS 630.364(3). 

27 Dated this 7th day of May, 2021. 

28 II 
II 
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NEV ADA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS 
INVESTIGATIVE COMMITTEE 

II 

II 

Victor M. Muro, M.D., Chairman 
Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners 
Investigative Committee 

NEV ADA RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE, RULE 45( c) AND 45( d) 

( c) PROTECTION OF PERSONS SUBJECT TO SUBPOENA. 

( 1) A party or an attorney responsible for the issuance and service of a subpoena shall take 
reasonable steps to avoid imposing undue burden or expense on a person subject to that subpoena. The court 
on behalf of which the subpoena was issued shall enforce this duty and impose upon the party or attorney in 
breach of this duty an appropriate sanction, which may include, but is not limited to, lost earnings and a 
reasonable attorney's fee. 

(2)(A) A person commanded to produce and permit inspection and copying of designated books, 
papers, documents or tangible things, or inspection of premises need not appear in person at the place of 
production or inspection unless commanded to appear for deposition, hearing or trial. 

(B) Subject to paragraph (d)(2) of this rule, a person commanded to produce and permit 
inspection and copying may, within 14 days after service of the subpoena or before the time specified for 
compliance if such time is less than 14 days after service, serve upon the party or attorney designated in the 
subpoena written objection to inspection or copying of any or all of the designated materials or of the 
premises. If objection is made, the party serving the subpoena shall not be entitled to inspect and copy the 
materials or inspect the premises except pursuant to an order of the court by which the subpoena was issued. 
If objection has been made, the party serving the subpoena may, upon notice to the person commanded to 
produce, move at any time for an order to compel the production. Such an order to compel production shall 
protect any person who is not a party or an officer of a party from significant expense resulting from the 
inspection and copying commanded. 

(3)(A) On timely motion, the court by which a subpoena was issued shall quash or modify the 
subpoena if it 

(i) fails to allow reasonable time for compliance; 
(ii) requires a person who is not a party or an officer of a party to travel to a place more than 

100 miles from the place where that person resides, is employed or regularly transacts business in 
person, except that such a person may in order to attend trial be commanded to travel from any such 
place within the state in which the trial is held, or 

(iii) requires disclosure of privileged or other protected matter and no exception or waiver 
applies, or 

(iv) subjects a person to undue burden. 
(B) If a subpoena 

(i) requires disclosure of a trade secret or other confidential research, development, or 
commercial information, or 

(ii) requires disclosure of an unretained expert's opinion or information not describing 
specific events or occurrences in dispute and resulting from the expert's study made not at the 
request of any party, the court may, to protect a person subject to or affected by the subpoena, quash 
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or modify the subpoena or, if the party in whose behalf the subpoena is issued shows a substantial 
need for the testimony or material that cannot be otherwise met without undue hardship and assures 
that the person to whom the subpoena is addressed will be reasonably compensated, the court may 
order appearance or production only upon specified conditions. 

( d) DUTIES IN RESPONDING TO SUBPOENA. 
(1) A person responding to a subpoena to produce documents shall produce them as they are kept in 

the usual course of business or shall organize and label them to correspond with the categories in the 
demand. 

(2) When information subject to a subpoena is withheld on a claim that it is privileged or subject to 
protection as trial preparation materials, the claim shall be made expressly and shall be supported by a 
description of the nature of the documents, communications, or things not produced that is sufficient to 
enable the demanding party to contest the claim. 
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Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners 

Affidavit of Service 

I, Kim Friedman, Sr. Investigator for the Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners, 
received the following documents on May 7, 2021, for personal service on Vida Spa 
LLC. 

1. __ Complaint and Notice of Hearing and Pre Hearing 
2. __ Summary Suspension 
3. Order for Substance Abuse Evaluation 
4. X Subpoena Duces Tecum 

I was able to serve process personally on respondent, by hand delivering a copy of the 
above document, on May 7, 2021, to Gisselle Platfoot at Vida Spa, LLC located at 3255 
S. Rainbow Blvd., #107, Las Vegas, NV 89146. 

COUNTY OF CLARK 
STATE OF NEVADA 

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before me 
This 13th day of September, 2021. 

~ ./ '1~ 
Notary Public 

DEBRA FOSTER 
Notary Public. State of Nevada 
AppointmentNo.17-3449-1 

My Appl. Expires Sep 22. 2021 
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EXHIBITS 38-58
VIDEO LINKS

EXHIBIT 38 VIDA SPA VIDEO 1

EXHIBIT 39 VIDA SPA VIDEO 2 

EXHIBIT 40 VIDA SPA VIDEO 3

EXHIBIT 41 VIDA SPA VIDEO 4

EXHIBIT 42 VIDA SPA VIDEO 5

EXHIBIT 43 VIDA SPA VIDEO 6

EXHIBIT 44 VIDA SPA VIDEO 7

EXHIBIT 45 VIDA SPA VIDEO 8

EXHIBIT 46 VIDA SPA VIDEO 9

EXHIBIT 47 VIDA SPA VIDEO 10

EXHIBIT 48 VIDA SPA VIDEO 11

EXHIBIT 49 VIDA SPA VIDEO 12

EXHIBIT 50 VIDA SPA VIDEO 13

EXHIBIT 51 VIDA SPA VIDEO 14

EXHIBIT 52 VIDA SPA VIDEO 15 

EXHIBIT 53 VIDA SPA VIDEO 16

EXHIBIT 54 VIDA SPA VIDEO 17

EXHIBIT 55 VIDA SPA VIDEO 18

EXHIBIT 56 VIDA SPA VIDEO 19

EXHIBIT 57 VIDA SPA VIDEO 20

EXHIBIT 58 VIDA SPA VIDEO 21
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·1· · · · · · · · ·A P P E A R A N C E S

·2

·3

·4 OFFICE OF THE GENERAL COUNSEL:

·5 Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners

·6 9600 Gateway Drive

·7 Reno, NV· 89521

·8 By:· Aaron Bart Fricke, J.D.

·9

10

11 PATRICIA HALSTEAD, HEARING EXAMINER

12

13 KIM FRIEDMAN, CMBI, INVESTIGATOR

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21
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23

24
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Page 3
·1· · · ·BE IT REMEMBERED that on September 20, 2021,

·2 commencing at 9:00 a.m. of said day, at Nevada State

·3· ·Board of Medical Examiners, 9600 Gateway Drive,

·4 Reno, NV· 89521, before me, CHRISTINA M. AMUNDSON, a

·5· · ·Certified Shorthand Reporter, the following

·6· · · · · · · · ·proceedings were had:

·7· · · · · · · · · · · -----------

·8· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· My name's Patricia

·9 Halstead, the hearing officer assigned to this

10 matter.· This is the charges and complaint against

11 Tammy Lynn Hankins, PA-C.· The hearing date for this

12 matter is October 19th, 2021.· We're here today for

13 a summary suspension hearing.· The date today is

14 September 20th, 2021.

15· · · · · Can you all please state your appearances.

16· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Thank you, Ms. Halstead.

17 Aaron Fricke, General Counsel, Nevada State Board of

18 Medical Examiners, for the Investigative Committee

19 of the Board.

20· · · · · ·THE HEARING OFFICER:· You have a witness?

21· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Yes.· Our witness is Kim

22 Friedman, CMBI, Senior Investigator for the Medical

23 Board.

24· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· I think I forgot to

25 say the case number.· It's 21-51633-1.· I note that
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·1 the time is 9:05.· Ms. Hankins had notice of this

·2 hearing.· Can you please explain the notice that Ms.

·3 Hankins was provided.

·4· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Yes.· The address of record

·5 that Ms. Hankins has is Cherry Tree Lane in Lake

·6 Havasu City, Arizona.· We have confirmed that

·7 address.· She was served via certified mailing of

·8 the order of summary suspension.· I'm not sure we

·9 have that among our exhibits but it's in the

10 pleadings that we should have prepared by the time

11 that we have the actual hearing.

12· · · · · Do we have that?· Can you print out the

13 certificate of service for the summary of suspension

14 order.· Thank you.

15· · · · · Proof of service was filed July 29th, 2021.

16 She was served on July 20th, 2021, with the order

17 of summary suspension and the first amended

18 complaint in this matter at her address at 3753

19 Cherry Tree Boulevard in Lake Havasu City, Arizona,

20 86406.· That order contemplates this hearing as

21 previously scheduled.

22· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· And that was sent by

23 certified mail, correct?

24· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Yes.

25· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· And someone signed
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·1 for that.

·2· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Yes.

·3· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Or it was signed by

·4 the -- given COVID.

·5· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Everything comes CV20 or CV19,

·6 so we don't know anymore, you know, what that means.

·7· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Okay.· All right.

·8 So, I'm going to find that service was appropriately

·9 made and Ms. Hankins had notice of this matter.· It

10 is now 9:07 and this matter is taking place in Reno

11 in person where I am and Mr. Fricke is and the court

12 reporter is.· The witness, Ms. Friedman, is in Las

13 Vegas.· That office is open.

14· · · · · Ms. Friedman -- I'm asking you because

15 you're there -- has there been any sign of Ms.

16 Hankins in the building of her appearance for this

17 matter since we've commenced the proceeding?

18· · · · · THE WITNESS:· No, ma'am.

19· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· I would note for the record

20 the office is open to the public and Ms. Hankins

21 could appear there if she wished.

22· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Okay.· Ms. Hankins

23 has failed to appear and so we'll commence with the

24 proceeding.· Mr. Fricke, go ahead.

25· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Thank you.· I'd like to make a
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·1 brief opening statement and then have some testimony

·2 from our witness and a brief closing.

·3· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you.

·4· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· In 2012 the respondent, Ms.

·5 Hankins, physician's assistant, was disciplined by

·6 the Arizona Medical Board for unprofessional

·7 conduct, specifically prescribing or dispensing

·8 controlled substances which she knew were not

·9 approved or in excess of the amount authorized,

10 conduct harmful or dangerous to the health of a

11 patient, failing or refusing to maintain adequate

12 records on a patient, and for failing to furnish

13 legally requested information to the Arizona Board.

14· · · · · And in 2012 Ms. Hankins was convicted in a

15 criminal proceeding in Arizona of two felonies,

16 obtaining a dangerous drug by fraud and sexual

17 relations with a minor.· She was sent to prison in

18 Arizona for more than three years.

19· · · · · That's to say that Ms. Hankins has been

20 down this road before.· When she was released, she

21 came to Las Vegas sometime, the evidence would

22 suggest, in 2019.· Unbeknownst to the Board, she

23 promptly resumed the practice of medicine without a

24 license and without supervision, including invasive

25 and dangerous cosmetic surgeries.· And in March she
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·1 applied to the Board for a license.

·2· · · · · Just since Ms. Hankins was released from

·3 prison in Arizona and came to Nevada, she has

·4 demonstrated a willingness still to do the

·5 following:· To fraudulently prescribe controlled

·6 substances, to practice medicine without a license,

·7 to practice medicine without a supervising

·8 physician, to perform dangerous, invasive cosmetic

·9 surgeries in a demonstrably unsafe facility without

10 accreditation or permitting and without the

11 necessary knowledge, training, and skill to inform

12 -- to perform invasive surgeries skillfully and

13 safely.

14· · · · · Also, she refuses to cooperate in the

15 Board's ongoing investigation of her activities,

16 including investigation of a case where she

17 seriously harmed a patient in one of these invasive

18 cosmetic surgeries.· And if that's not bad enough,

19 she's demonstrated a willingness to lie to the Board

20 itself in a public meeting, right to the Board

21 members themselves.

22· · · · · Simply put, Ms. Hankins has demonstrated an

23 inability to act professionally in the state of

24 Nevada.· She's a continuing danger to the public and

25 to any patient or practitioner she happens to come
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·1 across.· The evidence demonstrates that she will lie

·2 and she will cheat, she will obtain prescription

·3 drugs by fraud, she will break the law.· What

·4 credentials she has she will abuse.· Her conduct is

·5 incompatible with licensure to practice medicine.

·6· · · · · The IC filed its first amended complaint

·7 against Ms. Hankins on July 20th, 2021, as noted

·8 previously.· That was served upon her with a --

·9 along with the order of summary suspension.· The IC

10 reasonably determined at that time that the health

11 and safety of the public was at risk of imminent and

12 continued harm by Ms. Hankins retaining a license.

13 And pursuant to NRS 630.326 the IC suspended her

14 license pending this hearing today.

15· · · · · The purpose of this hearing is to determine

16 whether a reasonable basis exists to continue the

17 summary suspension pending the conclusion of a

18 hearing to consider the IC's first amended

19 complaint.· That hearing, as noted before, is set

20 for October 19th, 2021, less than a month from now.

21· · · · · Ms. Halstead, members of the Board, there's

22 abundant evidence to demonstrate that the summary

23 suspension was amply justified and should remain in

24 place until this matter is finally adjudicated by

25 the Board.· And the burden on the respondent of that
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·1 suspension, to the extent that that's even a

·2 relevant inquiry, is minimal, as she has no

·3 supervising physician and is, therefore, prohibited

·4 from practicing medicine anyway, and the period of

·5 that suspension is very short as this case is

·6 proceeding with all due speed.

·7· · · · · With that said, the IC would like to call

·8 Senior Investigator Kim Friedman to first lay a

·9 foundation for the admission of 58 exhibits that

10 evidence the pattern of misconduct of Ms. Hankins

11 that we've set forth in our complaint and to

12 establish a reasonable basis to keep the suspension

13 in place.

14· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you.

15· · · · · Go ahead and call your witness.

16· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Would you please swear the

17 witness.

18· · · · · (Witness sworn.)

19 BY MR. FRICKE:

20· · · Q· ·Good morning, Kim.

21· · · A· ·Good morning.

22· · · Q· ·Could you state your name and -- state your

23 name and title for the record.

24· · · A· ·Yes.· My name is Kim Friedman,

25 F-r-i-e-d-m-a-n.· I'm a CMBI Senior Investigator for
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·1 the Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners.

·2· · · Q· ·And CMBI, that's Certified Medical Board

·3 Investigator, correct?

·4· · · A· ·Correct.

·5· · · Q· ·What does CMBI certification entail?

·6· · · A· ·It's specified training for the medical

·7 board investigations that we conduct --

·8· · · Q· ·Okay.

·9· · · A· ·-- for violations of Malpractice Act.

10· · · Q· ·How many years have you been with the

11 board?

12· · · A· ·I've been with the Board just over nine

13 years.· I was hired June 1, 2012.

14· · · Q· ·And what do you do here?

15· · · A· ·I investigate allegations and violations of

16 the Medical Malpractice Act and well as Medicare

17 fraud, Medicaid fraud, sexual assault cases.

18· · · Q· ·And so you were the primary investigator

19 assigned to investigate the matters presented here

20 today?

21· · · A· ·That's correct.

22· · · Q· ·So, these matters pertain, to your

23 knowledge, to Ms. Hankins and activities occurring

24 at a place called Vita Spa in Las Vegas.

25· · · · · Is that correct?
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·1· · · A· ·That's correct.

·2· · · Q· ·Okay.· So, first, have you reviewed all the

·3 documents contained in the hearing binder in front

·4 of you?

·5· · · A· ·Yes.

·6· · · Q· ·So, the hearing binder -- is this the

·7 binder that consists of the -- the binder itself

·8 consisting of 37 exhibits and 397 pages?· You've

·9 reviewed all those documents?

10· · · A· ·Yes, I have.

11· · · Q· ·Thank you.· Were all the documents in this

12 binder obtained by you in the process of your

13 investigation of these matters?

14· · · A· ·Yes, they were.

15· · · Q· ·And are all these documents true, correct,

16 and unaltered copies of the documents that you

17 obtained?

18· · · A· ·Yes, they are.

19· · · Q· ·Great.· Also there are 21 videos that are

20 referenced in the exhibit list, those being exhibits

21 38 through 58.· And those, I'll submit for the

22 record, are videos that are on the flash drives that

23 have been provided to the hearing officer and the

24 court reporter.

25· · · · · Have you viewed all of those videos in
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·1 their entirety, Kim?

·2· · · A· ·Yes, I have.

·3· · · Q· ·Where did those videos come from?

·4· · · A· ·They were downloaded from various social

·5 media sites of Vita Spa, downloaded by you, Mr.

·6 Fricke, because I did not have the capability on my

·7 computer system to download them.

·8· · · Q· ·Right.· So, all of those videos were

·9 publicly available on Giselle Platfoot or Vita Spa's

10 publicly viewed internet feeds, correct?

11· · · A· ·That's correct.

12· · · Q· ·Those internet feeds were Facebook,

13 Instagram or Tik Tok, correct?

14· · · A· ·Correct.

15· · · Q· ·And I'm sorry if I asked.· You viewed those

16 videos in their entirety, correct?

17· · · A· ·Yes.

18· · · Q· ·And all of those videos that we have

19 downloaded and are on those flash drives, are the

20 true, correct, and unaltered copies of videos that

21 you saw on Giselle Platfoot or Vita Spa's publicly

22 viewable Internet feeds.· Is that correct?

23· · · A· ·Correct.

24· · · Q· ·I'll submit for the record that my computer

25 has a Microsoft screen-capture function, which is
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·1 why I did it on my computer.· But Kim has submitted

·2 that those are true and correct copies of those

·3 videos.

·4· · · · · So, Ms. Halstead, at this time I would move

·5 to admit all 58 exhibits, 1 through 37 as the

·6 exhibits in the binders and 38 through 58 as all

·7 this is evidence of the type commonly relied upon by

·8 reasonably and prudent persons in the conduct of

·9 their affairs and they are otherwise not privileged

10 and therefore they're admissible pursuant to NRS

11 233(b).123, which is the standard of evidence.

12· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· I'll admit Exhibits 1

13 through 58.

14· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Thank you.

15· · · · · (Exhibits 1 through 58 admitted.)

16 BY MR. FRICKE:

17· · · Q· ·Kim, let's just talk about Vita Spa.

18· · · · · When did you first become aware of the

19 facility called Vita Spa?

20· · · A· ·I initially became aware of Vita Spa

21 sometime around June of 2019.· A complaint was filed

22 on another provider who was working at Vita Spa,

23 which at that time was at another location.· An

24 investigation was conducted at that time, an onsite

25 inspection was conducted with myself and an
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·1 investigator with the Nevada State Board of

·2 Pharmacy.

·3· · · · · During that onsite inspection it was

·4 discovered that Vita Spa, or Giselle Platfoot who

·5 was there at the inspection had access to and

·6 control of the controlled substances and dangerous

·7 drugs.· In addition, there were dangerous drugs and

·8 drugs from another country that are not FDA approved

·9 in the United States, which were located in the

10 refrigerator inside the break room.

11· · · Q· ·And just to correct it -- I'm not sure I

12 heard it correctly -- this was June of 2018.

13· · · · · Is that correct?

14· · · A· ·June of 2019.

15· · · Q· ·Oh, okay.· Okay.· And at the time there was

16 -- that other provider you were referencing, that

17 provider is not a party to this proceeding, is not

18 mentioned in any of our pleadings.· Is that correct?

19· · · A· ·That's correct.

20· · · Q· ·But for the record that provider was a

21 surgeon, and so is that correct?

22· · · A· ·That's correct.

23· · · Q· ·And so what came of that case?

24· · · A· ·That case was presented to the

25 investigative committee and the result, I believe,
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·1 was compiled with additional cases that that

·2 provider had.

·3· · · Q· ·That's correct.· Thank you very much.

·4· · · · · So, suffice it to say that you knew that

·5 Vita Spa existed and that you had some concerns

·6 about the goings-on there and particularly with

·7 regard to the holding, the distribution,

·8 administration of dangerous drugs, correct?

·9· · · A· ·That's correct.· And Ms. Platfoot was

10 advised by the Pharmacy Board how to properly store

11 the medications.· The provider was also informed on

12 how to store the medications by having them locked,

13 and the only person who should have the key to those

14 medications would be the provider.

15· · · Q· ·Ms. Platfoot, to your knowledge, does she

16 hold a license to perform any healing art in this

17 state?

18· · · A· ·Not that I'm aware of, no.

19· · · Q· ·So, it's your understanding that Ms.

20 Platfoot simply owns the business and is operating a

21 business that offers cosmetic surgeries and other

22 sorts of services to the public.· Is that correct?

23· · · A· ·Correct.

24· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Can you spell her

25 name.
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·1· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· It's G-i-s-e-l-l-e,

·2 P-l-a-t-f-o-o-t.

·3· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you.

·4 BY MR. FRICKE:

·5· · · Q· ·When did you first become aware of

·6 allegations related to Ms. Hankins related to Vita

·7 Spa in this case?

·8· · · A· ·So the board receives received a complaint

·9 in October 6th, 2020, a citizen complaint

10 regarding patient care and bodily injury.· The

11 patient filed a complaint against Ms. Tammy Hankins

12 at Vita Spa at the new location on the Rainbow

13 address.

14· · · Q· ·And so this -- you received a complaint

15 about a pretty severe patient injury.

16· · · · · Is that correct?

17· · · A· ·That's correct.

18· · · Q· ·Can you tell us about that?

19· · · A· ·Yes.· The allegation on the complaint was

20 the patient had presented to Ms. Hankins at Vita Spa

21 for a liposuction procedure.· The date of service

22 was June 27th, 2020.· The patient was sedated

23 during the procedure.· Upon awakening, following the

24 procedure, Ms. Hankins had already left the

25 facility.
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·1· · · · · The anesthesiologist and the RN who

·2 remained attempted to revive the patient to have her

·3 removed from the facility to go down to her sister's

·4 waiting car, even though the patient was not stable,

·5 blood pressure was very, very low, her heart rate

·6 was low, her oxygen level was extremely low.

·7· · · · · When they moved the patient downstairs

·8 before getting into the patient's sister's car, the

·9 patient passed out in the parking lot.· EMS was

10 called.· EMS transported the patient to Spring

11 Valley Hospital where she was later diagnosed with

12 perforation of the bowels five times, hernia, and

13 sepsis.

14· · · · · The hospital attempted to contact Vita Spa.

15 No one from Vita Spa returned any of the phone calls

16 from Spring Valley Hospital, as it was denoted in

17 the medical records of Spring Valley Hospital.

18· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· There was diagnosis

19 of bowel perforation five times, sepsis -- and I

20 believe I was missing one.

21· · · · · THE WITNESS:· Hernia.

22 BY MR. FRICKE:

23· · · Q· ·So, this was the result of a vaser

24 liposuction procedure done on the abdomen of the

25 patient.· Is that correct?
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·1· · · A· ·That's correct.

·2· · · Q· ·So, first, did you obtain records from

·3 Spring Valley Hospital to corroborate this account?

·4· · · A· ·Yes.

·5· · · Q· ·So, you reviewed all the records from

·6 Spring Valley Hospital.· Is that correct?

·7· · · A· ·The record from Spring Valley Hospital as

·8 well as the EMS records.

·9· · · Q· ·Great.· Okay.· And you received a complaint

10 from this patient.· Is that correct?

11· · · A· ·That's correct.

12· · · Q· ·Now, this patient's name is not -- this

13 patient is not referenced in any of these -- of our

14 disclosures, but she is -- you will find her in

15 certain requests for records that we've made to Ms.

16 Hankins.· We have since obtained medical records for

17 this patient -- is that correct -- from Vita Spa?

18· · · A· ·That's correct.

19· · · Q· ·But you -- trying to sort of make a

20 timeline for the record.

21· · · · · So, you received that complaint, and

22 knowing what you already knew about Vita Spa, what

23 concerns did you have based upon this complaint.

24· · · A· ·My concerns were whether or not the

25 facility was licensed to perform procedures, what
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·1 medications were onsite, who was prescribing the

·2 medications onsite, whether the providers were

·3 onsite, what activities were transpiring at the

·4 medical spa.

·5· · · Q· ·And you've actually spoken to this patient.

·6· · · · · Is that correct?

·7· · · A· ·I did speak with this patient.· This

·8 patient also provided an affidavit of who was

·9 present in that room and prescribed the medication

10 and what -- basically what transpired that morning.

11· · · Q· ·Right.· So, specifically this patient

12 received some form of propofol sedation.

13· · · · · Is that correct?

14· · · A· ·That's correct.

15· · · Q· ·And that's indicated by the records of both

16 Vita Spa and Spring Valley Hospital?

17· · · A· ·Yes.

18· · · Q· ·So, you're familiar, Kim, with the Medical

19 Practices Act, specifically NRS 630.373.

20· · · · · Is that correct?

21· · · A· ·Yes.

22· · · Q· ·What does that say?

23· · · A· ·Practice of medicine is basically to

24 diagnose, treat any ailment --

25· · · Q· ·I'm sorry.· I'm referencing the
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·1 administration of conscious sedation without permit.

·2· · · A· ·Oh, I'm sorry.· So, the administration of

·3 conscious sedation needs to be in a facility that's

·4 licensed and credentialed, in other words, an

·5 outpatient facility.

·6· · · · · So, it would be through the Clark County

·7 business licensing and there would have to be

·8 credentials as well to provide any type of conscious

·9 sedation.

10· · · Q· ·Is it the Bureau of Healthcare Quality &

11 Compliance that issues those permits?

12· · · A· ·They do issue the outpatient facility

13 permit, yes.

14· · · Q· ·So, after corroborating the complainant's

15 account of what occurred to her by obtaining the

16 records from Spring Valley, what did you do next?

17· · · A· ·Made a referral to the Pharmacy Board.  I

18 wanted them to go in with me as they have the

19 jurisdiction over any medications that may be onsite

20 or controlled substance prescriptions.

21· · · · · I also made a referral to the Healthcare

22 Quality & Compliance as I had done research on the

23 business license and it was established at that time

24 that they were still licensed as a cosmetology

25 establishment and not as a medical facility.
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·1· · · Q· ·Okay.· And you're aware that cosmetologists

·2 are actually prohibited by their statute from

·3 engaging in the practice of medicine.

·4· · · A· ·That's correct.

·5· · · Q· ·So, as an investigator with your amount of

·6 experience, these would all be pretty big red flags

·7 in your mind.· Is that correct?

·8· · · A· ·Yes.

·9· · · Q· ·So, soon after -- let's talk about

10 October 27th, 2020 -- what did you do?

11· · · A· ·October 27th, 2020, myself and an

12 investigator with the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy

13 and an inspector with the Nevada State Board of

14 Pharmacy presented Vita Spa at the Rainbow address

15 where we conducted an onsite inspection and

16 investigation.

17· · · · · Upon entering the facility, I asked to

18 speak with the other, Ms. Platfoot, and asked to see

19 the various rooms and including the medication room

20 at that facility.· The staff member who was with

21 Giselle had the key and unlocked the medication

22 room.· At that time it was established there were no

23 licensed providers onsite at the facility.· When we

24 entered the medication room we immediately noted on

25 the counter multiple patient-specific bags of

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 22
·1 controlled substances from a pharmacy called "Santa

·2 Maria Pharmacy," which is a compounding pharmacy.

·3· · · · · None of the cabinets were locked and there

·4 was a refrigerator that was unlocked and inside the

·5 refrigerator contained multiple vials of dangerous

·6 drugs, controlled substances, controlled substances

·7 from various providers which were patient-specific,

·8 expired drugs, medications that had been punctured

·9 for use but had not been dated.· Once a medication

10 is punctured, it has 30 days before expiration.

11 There were various surgical supplies and autoclave

12 machine.

13· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· I'm sorry.· You said

14 a what machine?

15· · · · · THE WITNESS:· Autoclave machine.

16· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· What is that for?

17· · · · · THE WITNESS:· It's a machine used for

18 sterilization of surgical instruments.

19 BY MR. FRICKE:

20· · · Q· ·I'm sorry.· Go on, Kim.

21· · · A· ·So, once we passed through the medication

22 room, there was a door that led to a procedure room.

23 Upon entering the procedure room, it was noted that

24 it was very sparse.· It was not set up for a

25 procedure at that time.· The room basically
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·1 contained a procedure bed, a few empty mayo stands,

·2 an AED machine, which is a defibrillator, and IV

·3 holders.

·4· · · Q· ·I'll ask you specific questions about what

·5 you just explained.

·6· · · · · So, first a compounding pharmacy, what's

·7 the difference between a regular pharmacy and a

·8 compounding pharmacy?

·9· · · A· ·Regular pharmacy basically is a CVS, a

10 Walgreens or a WalMart.· They will order medications

11 directly from pharmaceutical companies, which they

12 will dispense.

13· · · · · A compounding pharmacy, they will actually

14 mix the medication, create the medication, formulate

15 the medication themselves and they will -- the one

16 variation is they will deliver the medication or

17 controlled substances or dangerous drugs, where

18 Walgreens or CVS will not deliver that to an office.

19· · · Q· ·And Santa Maria Pharmacy, the compounding

20 pharmacy, they do deliver.· Is that correct?

21· · · A· ·That's correct.

22· · · Q· ·All right.· And let's just back up for the

23 record.· Kim, what did you do before you were a

24 medical board investigator?

25· · · A· ·I was a surgical tech.
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·1· · · Q· ·And so what do surgical techs do?

·2· · · A· ·A surgical tech is the individual who

·3 assists in surgeries.· They will gather all the

·4 necessary equipment, instruments, they prep the

·5 room, and they assist the surgeon throughout the

·6 procedure.

·7· · · Q· ·So, you were a surgical tech for many

·8 years.· Is that correct?

·9· · · A· ·A few years, yes.

10· · · Q· ·And so what kind -- as a surgical tech what

11 kind of procedures did you assist in?

12· · · A· ·Colonoscopies, orthopedic surgery,

13 Hysterectomies.

14· · · Q· ·So, pretty much anything.

15· · · A· ·Yes, pretty much anything that came into

16 the OR, yes.

17· · · Q· ·That's fair.· And where did you work?

18· · · A· ·Valley Hospital.

19· · · Q· ·So, as a surgical technician and as a

20 medical board investigator, you're familiar with the

21 substances that we're talking about and you have

22 actually some personal expertise with these items,

23 correct?

24· · · A· ·That's correct.

25· · · Q· ·So, what is propofol?
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·1· · · A· ·Propofol is used for sedation.

·2· · · Q· ·Thank you.· And particularly it's used for

·3 surgical sedation, correct?

·4· · · A· ·Correct.

·5· · · Q· ·And --

·6· · · A· ·Go ahead.

·7· · · Q· ·And it's a dangerous drug?

·8· · · A· ·Yes.

·9· · · Q· ·So, you've witnessed personally the

10 administration of propofol on hundreds and hundreds

11 of patients during surgery.· Is that right?

12· · · A· ·That's correct.· For an example, we use

13 propofol for colonoscopy.· There will be the

14 physician, a surgical tech, and an anesthesiologist

15 who maintains the patient, the status of the

16 patient, the heart rate, the blood pressure, to

17 monitor them in case there's an emergency and they

18 need to bring the patient out quickly.

19· · · Q· ·And they maintain the airway as well,

20 correct?

21· · · A· ·Correct.

22· · · Q· ·And so propofol is used for sedation versus

23 other forms of sedatives and painkillers.· Why?

24 What's the particular characteristics of propofol

25 that make it suitable for surgery?
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·1· · · A· ·The patient revives faster from propofol

·2 than other types of sedation and they don't have to

·3 be intubated during the use of propofol.

·4· · · Q· ·Okay.· When you did your inspection of Vita

·5 Spa October 27th, 2020, you found some

·6 patient-specific midazolam.· Is that correct?

·7· · · A· ·That's correct.

·8· · · Q· ·So, when we say "patient-specific," what do

·9 you mean?

10· · · A· ·That the prescription for the midazolam was

11 written specifically for the patient to be the end

12 user.

13· · · Q· ·Okay.· And why is that significant?

14· · · A· ·Because the patient should have control and

15 possession of this medication if it's written for

16 the patient.· The only time a clinic or facility

17 should have possession of a controlled substance or

18 dangerous drugs is if the prescription is written

19 for office use only.

20· · · Q· ·So, for office use.· So, let's take a bit

21 of a hypothetical.

22· · · · · A physician -- the significance of that

23 patient-specific versus office use, if a physician

24 were to, let's say, write prescriptions to patients,

25 then have the compounding pharmacy like Santa Maria
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·1 then deliver that medication to them directly to

·2 their office.· Could the physician then have what

·3 they call a general store of medications for general

·4 dispensing to patients?· Does that happen?

·5· · · A· ·Yes.· And there's a concern for this

·6 facility itself in reviewing multiple patient

·7 records and matching them with the medications and

·8 dangerous drugs and controlled substances that we

·9 found onsite, what was administered to the patient

10 did not match what was actually dispensed to the

11 clinic.

12· · · · · So, that gave concern that they were using

13 patient-specific medications on a variety number of

14 patients because they had leftover.

15· · · Q· ·So, this practice of using patient-specific

16 prescriptions and then either getting them directly

17 delivered to that facility or reclaiming them from

18 the patient you tell -- prescribed to the patient

19 and tell the patient to bring it into the clinic,

20 this practice of gathering a general store of

21 medications, what's the problem with that?

22· · · A· ·The problem is, in essence, diversion,

23 unlicensed individuals having access to and

24 possession of dangerous drugs and controlled

25 substances when the provider is not receiving the
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·1 medication themselves.

·2· · · · · And in addition, there's a violation of a

·3 DEA regulation, a provider cannot take back a

·4 patient's medications unless they are registered to

·5 do so.

·6· · · Q· ·So, have you encountered this before in

·7 your years as an investigator, this -- obtaining a

·8 general store of medications for general dispensing

·9 to patients?

10· · · A· ·I have, yes.

11· · · Q· ·And so you discovered some injectable

12 midazolam that was patient-specific at Vita Spa.

13· · · · · Is that correct?

14· · · A· ·That's correct.

15· · · Q· ·So, it was written -- and those -- that

16 midazolam was written by another provider that's not

17 referenced in our pleadings.· Is that correct?

18· · · A· ·That's correct.

19· · · Q· ·Although, I believe his name may be part of

20 the request for records that you sent to Vita Spa.

21· · · · · Is that correct?

22· · · A· ·Yes.

23· · · Q· ·So, what is injectable midazolam used for?

24· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Can I ask are we

25 going to tie this into Ms. Hankins?· I'm curious.
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·1· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Yes.

·2· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· All right.

·3· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· These are rather technical

·4 issues and everyone should be aware of, I think, the

·5 gravity of what is occurring here.

·6· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Okay.

·7· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· But I'll get right to it.

·8 BY MR. FRICKE:

·9· · · Q· ·What is injectable midazolam used for?

10· · · A· ·Sedation and pain.

11· · · Q· ·Okay.· And you spoke to the provider who

12 wrote those patient-specific midazolam

13 prescriptions.· Is that correct?

14· · · A· ·I spoke to the provider that wrote the

15 midazolam as well as the provider who wrote the

16 controlled substances which were located on the

17 counter from Santa Maria Pharmacy.

18· · · Q· ·And what did that provider tell you that he

19 was using the midazolam for?

20· · · A· ·For the liposuction procedure, the vaser

21 liposuction procedures for the purpose of sedation.

22· · · Q· ·Thank you.· So, on that day, you mentioned

23 very briefly you spoke to Giselle Platfoot.

24· · · · · Tell us about your conversation.

25· · · A· ·Again, you know, Giselle's always been
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·1 forthcoming with us.· But the pharmacy board again

·2 informed her that the way she was maintaining the

·3 storage of medications was incorrect.

·4· · · · · And we had had this conversation before.

·5 We had serious concerns that her behavior with these

·6 medications were continuing, that she was in

·7 violation by having these medications and they

·8 needed to be locked up and only the provider and

·9 only a licensed person could have a key and access

10 to the controlled substance and dangerous drugs.

11· · · Q· ·Did you speak to Giselle about Ms. Hankins

12 on that day?

13· · · A· ·I briefly spoke to Giselle about Ms.

14 Hankins.· Giselle did state that Ms. Hankins was no

15 longer there, that she actually left or was

16 terminated following the mishap with the patient who

17 was perforated five times.

18· · · Q· ·Thank you.· And so right after that -- or

19 soon after that inspection, I direct your attention

20 to Exhibit 35.· What is this document, Kim?

21· · · A· ·This is a subpoena for medical records,

22 which was sent to Vita Spa LLC on Rainbow Boulevard

23 in Las Vegas, Nevada, in the matter of the

24 investigation of Tammy Hankins, PA-C.

25· · · Q· ·So, you sent this on the 5th of November.
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·1· · · · · Is that correct?

·2· · · A· ·That's correct.

·3· · · Q· ·And according to your affidavit of service,

·4 you mailed a copy via U.S. Postal Service to Vita

·5 Spa.· Is that correct?

·6· · · A· ·That's correct.

·7· · · Q· ·And you received some records from this

·8 subpoena.· Is that right?

·9· · · A· ·Yes.· Giselle Platfoot did hand-deliver the

10 medical records at that time.

11· · · Q· ·All right.· And we'll skip ahead.· There's

12 another subpoena that was sent, Exhibit 36.· This

13 was sent on December 3rd, a month later.· And

14 we'll understand in a moment when I ask you why you

15 sent this subpoena.

16· · · · · And then there's a third subpoena, Exhibit

17 37, which item requests very specific patient

18 records.· You sent all these subpoenas, correct?

19· · · A· ·That's correct.

20· · · Q· ·Okay.· So, knowing all of these things now

21 that we've reviewed without reviewing them in

22 detail, what did you do right after you left Vita

23 Spa on October 27th, 2020?

24· · · A· ·The investigator from the pharmacy board

25 and myself went to Dr. Salvador Borromeo's office to
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·1 discuss what had transpired.· The reason why we went

·2 there was because his name was the prescribing

·3 practitioner on all the medications that we found at

·4 Vita Spa.

·5· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Can you spell is

·6 that.

·7· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· S-a-l-v-a-t-o-r-e,

·8 B-o-r-r-o-m-e-o.

·9· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you.

10 BY MR. FRICKE:

11· · · Q· ·And for the record the hearing officer can

12 take public notice of the disciplinary action on Dr.

13 Borromeo that was taken just recently via the

14 settlement agreement approved at the last board

15 meeting in relation to this case.

16· · · · · So, you went to Dr. Borromeo's office.

17 That's in Las Vegas?

18· · · A· ·That's correct.

19· · · Q· ·And you met with Dr. Borromeo?

20· · · A· ·Yes, we did.· We met with Dr. Borromeo and

21 expressed our concerns of what we had discovered

22 when onsite at Vita Spa.· At that time I asked Dr.

23 Borromeo if he had any medical records from Ms.

24 Hankins or any provider at Vita Spa.

25· · · · · Dr. Borromeo was at his desk.· He turned
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·1 around, reached up to the counter behind him,

·2 grabbed approximately 26 medical records and handed

·3 them to myself and the investigator from the

·4 pharmacy board to review.

·5· · · · · We requested that Dr. Borromeo make copies

·6 of those medical records while we were present in

·7 the office, which he had his staff do.· Dr. Borromeo

·8 essentially admitted that he was writing

·9 prescriptions for patients at Vita Spa for

10 controlled substance.· He knew that Tammy Hankins

11 was working there and various other providers were

12 working there.

13· · · · · Initially Dr. Borromeo stated that he had

14 examined some of the patients on various days prior

15 to their procedures.· When Dr. Borromeo was

16 pressured to provide further information and

17 supporting documentation that he had examined the

18 patient, Dr. Borromeo admitted that he does not see

19 patients at Vita Spa, that staff members from Vita

20 Spa -- unknown, unlicensed staff members would bring

21 a fistful of prescriptions that were prefilled to

22 Dr. Borromeo and Dr. Borromeo would sign those

23 prescriptions.

24· · · · · Those prescriptions were then delivered to

25 Santa Maria Pharmacy.· Santa Maria Pharmacy would
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·1 then deliver the controlled substances directly to

·2 Vita Spa.

·3· · · Q· ·Okay.· So, these records, the stack of

·4 records -- just to be clear, you asked him, Do you

·5 have records from Vita Spa and is it -- are we to

·6 understand that he literally just reached behind him

·7 and said, Yeah, I have these records, here you go?

·8· · · A· ·Yes, he did.

·9· · · Q· ·And you said there were 20-something

10 records.· But were the records that you obtained

11 that day exhibits found in Exhibits 1 through 5 in

12 the binder?

13· · · A· ·Yes.

14· · · Q· ·Just to be clear, can we look at Exhibit 1.

15 And so this is patient records for Patient A.· So

16 the record is clear, not all of the pages that are

17 in this exhibit were part of the patient records

18 that you obtained from Vita Spa.· Is that correct?

19· · · A· ·That's correct for Dr. Borromeo.

20· · · Q· ·Right.· So, you'll see the printouts from

21 Nevada Prescription Monitoring Program, or the "PMP"

22 is how we'll refer to it -- as well as documentation

23 from pharmacies.

24· · · · · Where did you obtain that information, Kim?

25· · · A· ·The information from the PMP I ran myself
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·1 and the pharmacy's I was sent requests to various

·2 Walgreens and CVS and they provided me copies of the

·3 prescriptions.

·4· · · Q· ·So, if we look at Patient A's medical

·5 records, page 1 through 17 of Exhibit 1 are the

·6 medical records that you obtained from Dr. Borromeo

·7 that day.· Is that correct?

·8· · · A· ·Correct.

·9· · · Q· ·And then pages 18 through 42 is the PMP

10 information and documentation you obtained from the

11 pharmacy, correct?

12· · · A· ·Correct.

13· · · Q· ·So, just looking at this first record, page

14 one, Exhibit 1, what is this document, Kim?

15· · · A· ·This is an operative report.· This was for

16 a liposuction procedure that was performed by Tammy

17 Hankins at Vita Spa.· The date of service was

18 October 10th, 2019.

19· · · Q· ·It has written in here Dr. Washington's

20 name.· Who is Dr. Washington?

21· · · A· ·Correct.· At that time Dr. Washington was

22 the medical director of Vita Spa.

23· · · Q· ·"At that time" meaning October of 2019.

24· · · · · Is that correct?

25· · · A· ·That's correct.
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·1· · · Q· ·But on page two it looks like this record

·2 was signed by Dr. Borromeo.· Is that right?

·3· · · A· ·That's correct.

·4· · · Q· ·As well as by Tammy Hankins.

·5· · · A· ·Yes.

·6· · · Q· ·You've seen Tammy Hankins' signature on her

·7 application for a medical license.

·8· · · · · Is this her signature?

·9· · · A· ·Yes.

10· · · Q· ·So, what is significant about -- as an

11 investigator once seeing this record that day what

12 concerns did you have?

13· · · A· ·The concerns that I had were the date for

14 the service was October 10th, 2019, and Ms.

15 Hankins did not receive a license with the Board of

16 Medical Examiners until March 6th of 2020.

17· · · Q· ·Because she didn't have a license, she

18 couldn't have a supervising physician at the time.

19· · · · · Is that correct?

20· · · A· ·That's correct.· And I -- in the

21 investigation it was discovered she did not have a

22 supervising physician --

23· · · Q· ·In --

24· · · A· ·-- at that time.

25· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· I'm sorry.· I just
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·1 want to clarify.· The application was March 6, 2020?

·2· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· No.· Her -- I'm sorry.· The

·3 record would reflect her license was approved on

·4 March 6th, 2020.· I believe we received it in

·5 January of 2020.

·6· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Okay.· Then I have

·7 another question.· Sorry.· I just want to make sure

·8 I get my notes correct.

·9· · · · · So, it says the date of the procedure is

10 October 10th, 2019, but she signed -- the date

11 next to her signature is October 8th, 2019.

12· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Uh-huh.

13· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Okay.· Just

14 confirming.· Thank you.

15· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Yes.· Thank you.

16 BY MR. FRICKE:

17· · · Q· ·Page three of Exhibit 1, Kim, what is this

18 page?

19· · · A· ·This is patient prescription information.

20 This details the patient.· The date of the

21 prescription info was 10/9/2019.· It details the

22 medications that were going to be prescribed to the

23 patient for that procedure.· And it contains Tammy

24 Hankins' signature as well as Dr. Washington's DEA

25 number.
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·1· · · Q· ·Okay.· So, the prescriptions -- let's just

·2 note them, are for -- you see halfway down the page,

·3 "One hour before take" -- in parentheses -- "2:00

·4 p.m. two pills tramadol 50 milligrams."· It also

·5 says, "POQ6 PRN pain, times 24" -- I'm sorry -- "No.

·6 24 times 3D."· What does that mean to you?

·7· · · A· ·So, this is instructing the patient to take

·8 the tramadol by mouth or as needed for pain six

·9 times for three days.

10· · · Q· ·Right.· So, that's 24 count.· But it says

11 "One hour before, take 2:00 p.m."

12· · · A· ·Right.

13· · · Q· ·What is that instruction for?

14· · · A· ·Typically when I see that on a

15 prescription, it's informing the patient who will be

16 undergoing the prescription to take the medication

17 as instructed right prior to the procedure.

18· · · Q· ·But that instruction isn't consistent with

19 the PO Q6 PRN for pain that is being told to the

20 pharmacy.· Is that correct?

21· · · A· ·That's correct.

22· · · Q· ·So, who, in your mind -- obviously, we know

23 that Tammy Hankins signed this document.· But who

24 probably prepared this -- who wrote all these things

25 on this paper?

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 39
·1· · · A· ·In my estimate and having done

·2 investigation on Vita Spa for quite some time,

·3 either Tammy Hankins wrote this or Giselle Platfoot

·4 wrote it out and Tammy signed it or the RN wrote it

·5 out and Tammy signed it.

·6· · · Q· ·Because there's an interesting thing that

·7 says, "Notes: And buy a compression garment."

·8· · · · · So, these are -- to write this down is if

·9 to say this would be giving instructions to the

10 patient.· So, would this be a note that Giselle

11 maybe made that she instructed the patient to buy a

12 compression garment?

13· · · A· ·Yes, that's correct.· And in my

14 investigation in speaking with patients, the

15 majority of patients that I spoke with did not see a

16 provider at any time prior to the day of the

17 procedure.· Giselle Platfoot would see the patient

18 prior to the procedure and provide this information

19 to them.

20· · · Q· ·In the notes it says "Surgery lipo, 10/10

21 at 3:00 p.m., arms, axillary, areas surrounding."

22· · · · · Is your understanding that that would be a

23 vaser liposuction procedure done on the arms, right?

24· · · A· ·Yes.

25· · · Q· ·To be done at 3:00.
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·1· · · A· ·Right.

·2· · · Q· ·All right.· And then there's a note here

·3 10/9/19, 6:35 p.m.· "Done.· Pharmacist Emily."

·4· · · · · What does that mean to you, Kim?

·5· · · A· ·To me it says that they faxed this over to

·6 the pharmacy for these medications.

·7· · · Q· ·So, they're writing down that they did it,

·8 that this is done so it's ready to go.

·9 Prescriptions have been made, correct?

10· · · A· ·Yes.

11· · · Q· ·If we turn to the page -- so there are

12 various pharmacy records that you obtained from

13 Walgreens that were for this patient.

14· · · · · Is that correct?

15· · · A· ·That's correct.

16· · · Q· ·But if you look at page 39, which is

17 Exhibit 1, what is this?

18· · · A· ·This is a telephone prescription that was

19 called in.

20· · · Q· ·So, this is a record -- so this is the

21 record you obtained from Walgreens, correct?

22· · · A· ·That's correct.

23· · · Q· ·Notice the sold date, "10/9/2019."

24· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· I'll have to take

25 your word for that, because that's completely
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·1 illegible.

·2· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Off to the top on the right.

·3· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Oh, okay.· Thank you.

·4· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· The store number and

·5 prescription number.

·6· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· I see it now.

·7 BY MR. FRICKE:

·8· · · Q· ·Do you see the drug down there, "Tramadol

·9 50"?· Now, I know this is difficult scribble, but

10 you see the ICD 10 code is also written as "E88.1"?

11· · · · · And so the information that is written

12 here, does that comport with the instructions that

13 were written on page three?

14· · · A· ·Yes.

15· · · Q· ·Okay.· And it looks like we have a repeat

16 of that on page 40.· Page 41 is prescriptions for

17 promethazine and Bactrim, those being the other two

18 medications.· Promethazine, is that for nausea, Kim?

19· · · A· ·Yes.

20· · · Q· ·Bactrim, is that an antibiotic?

21· · · A· ·That's correct.

22· · · Q· ·So, this would be nausea medication because

23 she's going to receive some pretty powerful

24 sedatives and aesthetics and want to make sure that

25 she doesn't have too much nausea and then the
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·1 Bactrim would be for post-surgical antibiotics.

·2· · · A· ·That's correct.

·3· · · Q· ·Independently verified from the

·4 Prescription Monitoring Program report for the

·5 Patient A on page 24.· So, this information is

·6 reported directly from the pharmacy to the PMP that

·7 independently verifies that on 10/9/2019 sold,

·8 written, 10/9/2019, "Diazepam 10 milligrams, eight

·9 for three days."· Same prescription, "Tramadol,

10 50 milligrams."· Tramadol, that's an opioid.

11· · · · · Is that correct?

12· · · A· ·That's correct.

13· · · Q· ·And Diazepam is benzodiazepine, a sedative,

14 correct?

15· · · A· ·Correct.

16· · · Q· ·On this reported -- page 24, who is

17 reported here as the prescriber?

18· · · A· ·Dr. Sherman Washington.

19· · · Q· ·So, that would be the same Sherman

20 Washington that's written on page three.

21· · · A· ·That's correct.

22· · · Q· ·All right.· And that's his DEA number.

23· · · · · Is that correct?

24· · · A· ·That's correct.

25· · · Q· ·Okay.· So, in your mind there's no doubt
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·1 what happened here.

·2· · · · · What occurred based upon these documents?

·3· · · A· ·Based upon these documents, Ms. Hankins

·4 performed a medical procedure without a license to

·5 practice medicine in the state of Nevada.· And

·6 there's concern that medications were written by an

·7 unlicensed individual, being Giselle Platfoot, sent

·8 over to the pharmacy by utilizing another provider's

·9 DEA number.

10· · · Q· ·Okay.· And this is a patient that

11 Dr. Washington did not see.· Is that correct?

12· · · A· ·That's correct.· It was later identified

13 through my investigation that Dr. Washington did not

14 see any of these patients that the prescription was

15 used for.

16· · · Q· ·Just to corroborate that, this is a really,

17 really important thing.· If we go to Exhibit 25 you

18 sent Dr. Washington an allegation letter in this

19 case.· Is that correct?

20· · · A· ·That's correct.

21· · · Q· ·And Exhibit 25, page 336, is that his

22 response to your allegation letter?

23· · · A· ·Yes, it is.

24· · · Q· ·We won't read this whole thing, but with

25 response to Allegation No. 1, he was the medical
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·1 director.· Allegation 2, "While I was the medical

·2 director, I became a supervising doctor for Ms.

·3 Hankins."

·4· · · · · Now, Dr. Washington wasn't actually the

·5 supervising physician of Ms. Hankins with respect to

·6 an official supervising agreement with the board.

·7· · · · · Is that correct?

·8· · · A· ·That's correct.

·9· · · Q· ·So, a supervising -- a physician's

10 assistant cannot practice medicine in the state of

11 Nevada under Nevada law unless they have a

12 supervising physician on file with the board.

13· · · · · Is that correct?

14· · · A· ·That's correct.

15· · · Q· ·And that supervising physician has some

16 very formal requirements as to what supervision

17 entails.· Is that correct?

18· · · A· ·That's correct.

19· · · Q· ·Okay.· And we have a termination document

20 in here as well we can get to, but he says in the

21 second paragraph, "While I agree to supervise Ms.

22 Hankins, I specifically told both Vita Spa and Ms.

23 Hankins that she could not perform any procedures

24 until she provided proof that she was working within

25 her scope.· I requested the following things," blah,
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·1 blah, blah.

·2· · · · · "After 30 days I did not request any

·3 requested materials and, therefore, I rescinded my

·4 agreement.· I never authorized Ms. Hankins to

·5 perform liposuction or any other procedures.· I was

·6 not aware that Ms. Hankins performed liposuction

·7 procedures on or about October of 2019.· I never

·8 signed any charts for Ms. Hankins.· I was not

·9 present during any procedures she performed.· I was

10 not consulted regarding any procedures Ms. Hankins

11 performed or participated in during my

12 directorship."

13· · · · · Kim, after your review of all the evidence

14 and in your investigation of Dr. Washington's

15 involvement, so far as that is written does that

16 comport with your understanding of Dr. Washington's

17 involvement?

18· · · A· ·Yes, but I still had concerns about his

19 response.

20· · · Q· ·What were those concerns?

21· · · A· ·My concern is, having been the medical

22 director of Vita Spa, Dr. Washington had previously

23 performed procedures at that facility.· This was not

24 a facility that had just opened.· He was aware that

25 they were already actively performing procedures at
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·1 that facility.· He was aware that they were using

·2 controlled substance prescriptions for sedation at

·3 that facility.

·4· · · · · So, I'm having a difficult time stating

·5 that, no, he was not aware that procedures were

·6 being formed, that he was not aware that Tammy

·7 Hankins was performing procedures, and that he was

·8 not aware that controlled substance prescriptions

·9 were being written.

10· · · · · My other concern is, once Dr. Washington

11 was confirmed that his DEA number had been

12 compromised, he did not contact the pharmacy board

13 with concerns of his license being compromised.· To

14 my knowledge he never contacted DEA to inform them

15 that his DEA registration had been compromised, nor

16 had Dr. Washington contacted the Metropolitan Police

17 Department to file a police report that his DEA

18 number had been compromised.

19· · · Q· ·Thank you.· In Allegation 3 he said, "I did

20 not authorize Ms. Hankins to provide, prescribe

21 controlled substances on my behalf for any patient."

22 That's what he said in response.

23· · · · · But based upon the documents, Dr.

24 Washington provided his DEA number to Vita Spa.

25· · · · · Is that correct?
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·1· · · A· ·Yes.

·2· · · Q· ·And so he's saying that he didn't authorize

·3 these prescriptions and yet he's been confronted

·4 with evidence that these prescriptions were written

·5 under his name.· Is that right?

·6· · · A· ·That's correct.

·7· · · Q· ·So, that's why you're concerned that he

·8 never reported to the pharmacy board, to the DEA, to

·9 the police that these were fraudulently written,

10 misappropriation of his prescribing credentials.

11· · · · · Is that right?

12· · · A· ·That's correct.

13· · · Q· ·Okay.

14· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Can I ask a question?

15· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Please.

16· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· I just want to be

17 clear.

18· · · · · So, if you turn to page three, that's the

19 patient prescription info.· Then compare that with,

20 for example, 39.· Isn't the doctor supposed to sign

21 the prescriptions?· I mean, I realize his name and

22 DEA number is on there.

23· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Yeah.

24 BY MR. FRICKE:

25· · · Q· ·Kim, are all these call-in prescriptions?
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·1· · · A· ·Yes, these are prescriptions that are

·2 called in.

·3· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· So, they just

·4 represent that they have his authority and he's not

·5 required to sign anything when they call in?

·6· · · · · THE WITNESS:· That's correct.· Because they

·7 have his DEA number.

·8· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Okay.· Thank you for

·9 helping me with that.

10 BY MR. FRICKE:

11· · · Q· ·So, Kim, to drill down on that a little,

12 have you seen cases where there has been a

13 misappropriation of someone's prescribing

14 credentials where the prescriber had no knowledge of

15 it?

16· · · A· ·Yes.

17· · · Q· ·You can obtain a DEA number from, for

18 example, a preprinted prescription that you happen

19 to have.· Is that right?

20· · · A· ·That's correct.

21· · · Q· ·So, it's possible that Vita Spa completely

22 misappropriated his -- Dr. Washington's DEA number

23 in this case.· Is that right?

24· · · A· ·It is possible.

25· · · Q· ·But, however, let's look at at Dr.
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·1 Washington's response.· Again, page 25 --

·2· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Exhibit 25.

·3· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Sorry.· Exhibit 25.

·4 BY MR. FRICKE:

·5· · · Q· ·It's page 338 and 339.· What is -- so this

·6 is -- Kim, is this a document that you received from

·7 Dr. Washington in response to your allegation

·8 letter?

·9· · · A· ·Yes, it was.

10· · · Q· ·This was just an attachment to that email,

11 right?

12· · · A· ·That's correct.

13· · · Q· ·And was this document -- what does this

14 document purport to show?

15· · · A· ·The termination of the agreement between

16 Tammy Hankins and Sherman Washington.

17· · · Q· ·And the date is November 1, 2019?

18· · · A· ·Correct.

19· · · Q· ·We assume that's signed by him.· Did the

20 board ever actually receive any documentation of a

21 termination with Ms. Hankins around November 2019?

22· · · A· ·No.· I verified with Licensing that, not

23 only did we not receive a termination, they never

24 received an initial supervising agreement between

25 Tammy Hankins and Dr. Washington.
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·1· · · Q· ·And it would have been an absurdity for us

·2 to receive a supervising agreement with Dr.

·3 Washington and Tammy Hankins, correct?

·4· · · A· ·Yes.

·5· · · Q· ·Why would it be absurd?

·6· · · A· ·Oh, if we had received one, we would have

·7 Bates-stamped it the day we received it and sent a

·8 copy to Dr. Washington verifying that we have the

·9 agreement between the two of them.

10· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Are you getting at

11 the fact that she was not licensed?

12· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Yes.

13 BY MR. FRICKE:

14· · · Q· ·In November 2019 she was not licensed.

15· · · A· ·That's correct.

16· · · Q· ·So, it made no sense.· Based upon that, do

17 you believe that Dr. Washington actually ever sent

18 this to us?

19· · · A· ·No, I do not.

20· · · Q· ·Okay.· And so Dr. Washington in his

21 statement admits he's the medical director of Vita

22 Spa.· He also admits he was being paid.· What do you

23 think Dr. Washington -- I'm sorry.· To your

24 knowledge does Dr. Washington have another practice,

25 his own private practice?
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·1· · · A· ·Yes, Dr. Washington does have another

·2 private practice.

·3· · · Q· ·So, have you ever seen any evidence

·4 whatsoever from any investigation of Vita Spa that

·5 Dr. Washington was working at Vita Spa with Tammy

·6 Hankins on any -- on any of the patients that she

·7 was serving?

·8· · · A· ·No.· I only have evidence that Dr.

·9 Washington provided procedures at Vita Spa prior to

10 Tammy Hankins even being employed by Vita Spa.

11· · · Q· ·We have evidence that prescriptions were

12 written by Dr. Washington -- sorry -- in Dr.

13 Washington's credentials and that -- for patients

14 that Tammy Hankins was providing services to while

15 she had no license.· Is that right?

16· · · A· ·That's correct.

17· · · Q· ·Okay.· And also that Dr. Washington was

18 getting paid during this period.

19· · · A· ·That's correct.

20· · · Q· ·Okay.· Let's go back to -- let me just ask

21 you a specific question.· Is it a violation of the

22 Nevada Medical Practices Act for an unlicensed

23 person who has no license to prescribe dangerous

24 drugs or controlled substances, to examine a

25 patient, diagnose a patient, then use the
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·1 credentials of another licensed practitioner to

·2 write scripts in that practitioner's name and then

·3 pass that prescription off as if they were the

·4 lawful prescriber who wrote the script?

·5· · · A· ·That's correct, that's a violation.

·6· · · Q· ·In particular, it's problematic because the

·7 prescriber doesn't have a bona fide patient

·8 relationship?

·9· · · A· ·Correct.

10· · · Q· ·Because you can't simply loan your

11 prescribing credentials out to even other licensed

12 providers.· Is that correct?

13· · · A· ·That's correct.· The provider has to have

14 hands on, bona fide patient-physician relationship

15 with the patient to diagnose, treat, and prescribe

16 to that patient.

17· · · Q· ·Okay.· So, again, after being informed now

18 in writing that prescriptions went out written by

19 Tammy Hankins for her patients on Dr. Washington's

20 DEA number and under his pharmacy license, Dr.

21 Washington didn't complain to anybody.

22· · · · · Is that correct?

23· · · A· ·That's correct.· To date I have not heard

24 anybody confirm that he has filed concern or

25 complaint of his DEA registration being compromised.
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·1· · · Q· ·Let's compare that to what happened with

·2 Dr. Borromeo, Exhibit 29, Bates-stamped 351.

·3· · · · · Kim, is this the standard physician

·4 assistant's supervision form from the board?

·5· · · A· ·Yes, it is.

·6· · · Q· ·And there's a certification here, and also

·7 it says at the bottom of the third paragraph,

·8 "Further, this relationship will not begin until I

·9 am in receipt of a file-stamped copy of this

10 notification bearing the receipt stamp of the board

11 thereon."

12· · · · · What do you understand that this form is to

13 be used for?

14· · · A· ·This form is to confirm the supervising

15 physician agreement between the supervising

16 physician and a physician assistant.· It's also

17 informing the applicant that the supervising

18 physician agreement is not enforced until they

19 receive a stamped copy from the medical board.

20· · · · · In this instance, although the signatures

21 were June 1st, the stamped copy was not received

22 by them until June 8th.· Therefore, they could not

23 be a supervising physician until that June 8th

24 date.

25· · · Q· ·Why is it necessary for -- does Licensing
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·1 have to do a check?

·2· · · A· ·That's correct.· We need to make sure that

·3 all parties are properly licensed.

·4· · · Q· ·Right.· And that there's not too many PAs

·5 being supervised by the same physician, et cetera,

·6 because there's a limit?

·7· · · A· ·Right.

·8· · · Q· ·Right.· So, and under Nevada law a

·9 physician's assistant cannot practice until the

10 supervision agreement has been approved and returned

11 to them.· Is that right?

12· · · A· ·That's correct.

13· · · Q· ·Okay.· So, specifically this is a

14 supervision agreement between Salvador Borromeo and

15 Ms. Hankins at Vita Spa, and this would have been

16 effective on or after June 8th, 20.

17· · · · · Is that right?

18· · · A· ·That's correct.

19· · · Q· ·And then the next page 352, what is this

20 form?

21· · · A· ·This is a termination of supervising

22 agreement between Tammy Hankins and Salvador

23 Borromeo.

24· · · Q· ·And this is, again, our standard form.

25· · · · · And what does this form indicate?
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·1· · · A· ·This is indicating that Dr. Borromeo

·2 submitted this termination of agreement and the

·3 Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners received it

·4 and it was officially stamped on November 2, 2020,

·5 which means at that time Tammy Hankins no longer had

·6 a supervising physician agreement in place with any

·7 physician.

·8· · · Q· ·But there's a discrepancy between the date

·9 we received it versus the date that he can -- that

10 Dr. Borromeo, it appears, claims that he terminated

11 his supervising.

12· · · · · There's a date here of July 1st, 2020.

13 But he only signed it October 28th, 2020, and then

14 we didn't receive it until November 2nd.

15· · · A· ·Correct.

16· · · Q· ·How can you account for that discrepancy,

17 Kim?

18· · · A· ·It is my belief that the reason why Dr.

19 Borromeo put the date of 7/1/2020 is because that

20 was shortly following the incident with the patient

21 that was perforated.

22· · · · · October 8th, 2020, is a reflection to

23 that's the day following the onsite inspection that

24 the investigator of the pharmacy board and myself

25 had with Dr. Borromeo in his office regarding
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·1 concerns of activities at Vita Spa and Tammy

·2 Hankins.

·3· · · Q· ·Thank you.· So, alerted to the concerns of

·4 the medical board regarding Ms. Hankins and Vita

·5 Spa, Dr. Borromeo submits a termination that is

·6 backdated to try to cut off any responsibility he

·7 might have for Ms. Hankins' activities, correct?

·8· · · A· ·That's correct.

·9· · · Q· ·Under the Medical Practices Act -- and I'm

10 sorry -- again, a physician assistant is deemed the

11 agent of the supervising physician, correct?

12· · · A· ·That's correct.

13· · · Q· ·And the supervising physician is

14 responsible professionally for all the medical

15 activities of their supervisee.· Is that correct?

16· · · A· ·That's correct.

17· · · Q· ·Okay.

18· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Can I -- can I ask

19 another question, because I want to understand.

20· · · · · Is the medical doctor supposed to -- I

21 mean, so in the procedure that we're complaining

22 about, who was in the room when the procedure was

23 done?· Are you going to get to this?· Because I'm

24 curious because it's sort of -- we've gone around

25 it.
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·1· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Well, we can get to it to the

·2 extent we can.· I mean, obviously, Kim wasn't

·3 personally there.

·4· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Right.· Well, this is

·5 my general question.· Does the supervising doctor

·6 need to be in the room when the procedure is done or

·7 does the supervising doctor vouch for the person and

·8 say they can do this procedure and I'm vouching for

·9 them with my supervision?

10· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· That would require a medical

11 opinion, but -- or legal opinion.

12· · · · · The statute requires that a supervising

13 physician have a program of supervision.· There are

14 certain minimum requirements.· That program of

15 supervisions is articulated both in the NRS and the

16 NAC regarding supervision, but generally it entails

17 that they do monthly in-person reviews, that they

18 treat persons together for a certain period, that

19 there be a representative sample of charts that are

20 reviewed, and that physician and physician assistant

21 relationships can range from the traditional, which

22 is a physician's assistant in the same office of a

23 supervising physician treating patients together in

24 tandem, which was the conventional way of looking at

25 it, all the way to physician assistants who act
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·1 independently and, for all practical purposes, hang

·2 out a shingle, open an office and say, I'm a

·3 physician assistant.

·4· · · · · And then they pay a supervising physician

·5 to supervise them, air quotes, where that

·6 supervising physician, hopefully, is maintaining

·7 that program of supervision.· They also have to

·8 maintain documentation of that program.

·9· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Okay.

10· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· And it's important to

11 recognize that the supervising physician under law

12 be personally, professionally responsible for what

13 their PA does.

14· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Right.· I was looking

15 for a bright line.· Like, was he required to be in

16 the room or not.· But there's no bright line, is

17 what I understand.

18· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· There's not.· A physician

19 assistant is not a medical assistant.· A medical

20 assistant is an unlicensed person by definition.

21 The physician's assistant is a licensed professional

22 that cannot practice without a supervising

23 physician.· So, it was not necessary for -- I mean,

24 under -- legally as a bright line rule for a

25 physician's assistant to their have supervisor
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·1 present.

·2· · · · · However, that's rarely done in practice and

·3 there are very large dangers apparent from having a

·4 PA who doesn't have the same schooling, doesn't have

·5 the same riggers doing invasive liposuction

·6 procedures at an unlicensed, unpermitted facility,

·7 et cetera.

·8· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you.

·9· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Okay.

10· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you, Ms.

11 Friedman, for indulging me.

12· · · · · THE WITNESS:· That's okay.

13· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· But, in fact, she did not have

14 a supervising physician and it's written

15 specifically on that supervising agreement that you

16 cannot practice until you receive this back.

17 BY MR. FRICKE:

18· · · Q· ·So, let's get back to Dr. Borromeo's

19 response, Exhibit 29.· Exhibit 26.

20· · · · · Is it your understanding, Kim, that you on

21 behalf of the investigative committee and the

22 pharmacy board both sent allegation letters to Dr.

23 Borromeo?

24· · · A· ·Correct.

25· · · Q· ·And Exhibit 26, page 340, 341, 342, what is
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·1 this document?

·2· · · A· ·This is Dr. Borromeo's response to the

·3 medical board allegations.

·4· · · Q· ·And in this response on page 341 you see

·5 Dr. Borromeo's response?

·6· · · A· ·Yes.

·7· · · Q· ·Let's go down to paragraph four.· He said,

·8 "Pursuant to the agreement, they were to keep all

·9 medical records at their facility.· My role was

10 supposed to be limited to that of a consultant and

11 it was my understanding that the cosmetic procedures

12 were non-invasive ones that were being performed by

13 properly licensed individuals.· In addition, we did

14 not discuss to me writing or authorizing any

15 prescriptions, so I presumed that they already had

16 someone who was doing so, if needed.· I had agreed

17 to be paid $3,000 per month for what I believe was

18 going to be one day per month of consultation work

19 at the spa.· We didn't agree to a start date."

20· · · · · I understand that we're in a summary

21 suspension hearing and there's a lot to go into that

22 we could demonstrate this, but on page 344 you see

23 he sent in a copy of his medical director agreement

24 with Vita Spa.· Is that correct, Kim?

25· · · A· ·That's correct.
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·1· · · Q· ·And I want to compare that to Exhibit 27

·2 page 347.· He gave a slightly different answer to

·3 the pharmacy board when asked about these

·4 prescriptions, didn't he, Kim?

·5· · · A· ·Yes, he did.

·6· · · Q· ·And in this he says to the investigator for

·7 the pharmacy board, "While acting as medical

·8 director for the month of June, I have prescribed

·9 controlled substances for their patients that will

10 undergo invasive procedures as part of their

11 conscious sedation and pain control."

12· · · · · What does that statement mean to you, Kim?

13 How is it significant?

14· · · A· ·It's significant because the facility

15 wasn't licensed, first of all, for performing

16 sedation procedures.· It's also that Dr. Borromeo

17 was deceptive with his response with the medical

18 board in his response to us.· He had changed his,

19 basically, explanation from the time we investigated

20 him and spoke with him onsite where he admitted he

21 did it and then he denies he was writing

22 prescriptions and then he admitted to the pharmacy

23 board he did write prescriptions.

24· · · · · In addition this tells me that Tammy

25 Hankins had access to control, possession, and
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·1 administered controlled substances while she was

·2 onsite at the facility.

·3· · · Q· ·Thank you.· It says -- also just to

·4 continue -- "The prescriptions for these controlled

·5 substances were given to me with the name of the

·6 individual patients with corresponding medications

·7 and doses written by Vita Spa's nurse or medical

·8 assistant for my approval and signature."

·9· · · · · That sentence, what's wrong with that, Kim?

10· · · A· ·Dr. Borromeo did not have a

11 patient-physician relationship with the patients to

12 whom he was prescribing controlled substances.

13· · · Q· ·Okay.· These are patients that are

14 scheduled to undergo procedures for the following

15 day.· "The written prescriptions are then brought to

16 pharmacy Santa Maria which delivers the medications

17 directly to" -- strike that -- "the written

18 prescriptions are then brought to Pharmacy Santa

19 Maria which delivers the medications to Vita Spa

20 location.· The medications which are accepted by the

21 Vita Spa facility are then administered to the

22 patient shortly before the scheduled procedure."

23· · · · · What's wrong with that, Kim?

24· · · A· ·Unlicensed individuals with access and

25 possession and control of the controlled substances.
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·1· · · Q· ·Is it also a problem that you have

·2 unlicensed individuals administering controlled

·3 substances to patients?

·4· · · A· ·That's correct.

·5· · · Q· ·And it says, "This is done by the nurse

·6 assisting with the procedure or by Dr. MaryAnn

·7 Phillips, who was an employed by the Vita Spa."

·8· · · · · Why -- let's break those out.· Why is that

·9 problematic?

10· · · A· ·The issue is with Dr. Phillips and the RN.

11 Typically if a physician wants a nurse to administer

12 medication prior to a procedure, they will write an

13 order.· The medical records that I reviewed did have

14 Dr. Borromeo's name on the order.· Dr. Borromeo,

15 however, stated that he never wrote an order for any

16 of the patients at Vita Spa.

17· · · Q· ·Right.· So, nurses can administer dangerous

18 drugs and controlled substances with an order from a

19 physician.· That is correct?

20· · · A· ·Correct.

21· · · Q· ·But there's no orders here.

22· · · A· ·Correct.

23· · · Q· ·Secondly, with respect to Dr. Phillips,

24 does Dr. Phillips herself have a controlled

25 substance license?
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·1· · · A· ·She does not.

·2· · · Q· ·Or a DEA registration?

·3· · · A· ·She does not.

·4· · · Q· ·Has Ms. Phillips been disciplined by the

·5 board repeatedly, had her license in another state

·6 revoked, and had her CS license surrendered?

·7· · · A· ·That's correct.

·8· · · Q· ·And that's a terribly compound question,

·9 but it's trying to skip forward.

10· · · · · Exhibit 24, if I can direct your attention

11 there, page 330 through 335, what are these

12 documents, Kim?

13· · · A· ·These are cease and desist patient orders

14 from the Nevada State Board of Pharmacy for Giselle

15 -- excuse me.· Vita Spa received a cease and desist

16 order.· Tammy Hankins, PA-C, received a cease and

17 desist order and Dr. Maryann Phillips received a

18 cease and desist order.

19· · · Q· ·Page 332 says that the pharmacy board has

20 determined that you are possessing, administering,

21 prescribing and/or dispensing controlled substances

22 and/or dangerous drugs from your practice in

23 violation of federal and state law.· Specifically

24 you do not have a controlled substance registration.

25 You are prohibited from possessing and/or
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·1 administering controlled substances and/or dangerous

·2 drugs."

·3· · · · · Does that comport with your understanding,

·4 Kim?

·5· · · A· ·That's correct.

·6· · · Q· ·All right.· And also for Dr. Phillips, the

·7 same thing.· She doesn't have a CS registration and

·8 can't possess and administer these drugs either.

·9· · · · · I probably have 40 minutes more.

10· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Okay.· I wouldn't

11 mind a quick break, if that's okay.

12· · · · · · · · · ·(Recess taken.)

13· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· We're back on the

14 record in Case 2151633-1 in the matter of the

15 charges and complaint against Tammy Lynn Haskins,

16 PA-C.· We took a break for a couple minutes.· It is

17 now ten:· 35.· I remind, Ms. Friedman, that you

18 remain under oath.

19· · · · · Go ahead and continue, Mr. Fricke

20· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Thank you.

21 BY MR. FRICKE:

22· · · Q· ·So, Kim, let's go back to following your

23 meeting with Dr. Borromeo.· You have these records

24 now, the stack of records, and you're looking at

25 these records.· Let's go back to page three of
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·1 Exhibit 1.

·2· · · · · In the middle of the page you see this

·3 instruction:· "One hour before, take 2:00 p.m."

·4· · · · · So, does this indicate to you that Ms.

·5 Hankins is writing a prescription for pain

·6 post-surgical, but then she's contravening that

·7 instruction but telling the patient to take two

·8 pills of tramadol and one pill of Valium

·9 prophylactically before the surgery?· Is that what

10 Ms. Hankins is doing here?

11· · · A· ·That's what it appears she has done, yes.

12· · · Q· ·All right.· And as opposed to giving

13 propofol, which is a medication designed for surgery

14 in your experience, Ms. Hankins is using

15 prescription tablet medications and opioid and

16 benzodiazepines for surgical sedation?

17· · · A· ·That's what it appears.· That's correct.

18· · · Q· ·So, look at Exhibit 2 for Patient B.· This

19 is another operative report.· Is that correct, Kim?

20· · · A· ·That's correct.

21· · · Q· ·And not to go into it in too much depth, it

22 describes liposuction of arms.· Is it your opinion,

23 basically, all the same violations of Exhibit 1

24 occurred with respect to Patient B in Exhibit 2?

25· · · A· ·That's correct.
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·1· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Can we go back to

·2 page three.· So, you implied she didn't use the

·3 propofol for the procedure but instead the tramadol

·4 and Valium ahead of procedure in tablet form.

·5· · · · · Do we know that for a fact?

·6· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Well, this is their record.

·7· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Earlier in the

·8 hearing you said that they had drugs that were

·9 locked up in other patients' names.· Do we actually

10 know what she used during the procedure?

11· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Well, I would say the records

12 indicate that with respect to this procedure what

13 was used was tramadol and Valium.· Propofol may have

14 been used in addition.· That said, Kim can clarify.

15 BY MR. FRICKE:

16· · · Q· ·Kim, when did you discover -- first find

17 propofol at Vita Spa?

18· · · A· ·We did find one box of propofol while you

19 were onsite at the October 27th, 2020, inspection,

20 but it was not later.· It was not until later in

21 June of 2021 where we discovered it was actually

22 propofol onsite being administered.

23· · · · · In addition, when I pull records from the

24 two pharmaceutical companies that provided the

25 propofol, it did not date back to this timeline.
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·1· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you.

·2 BY MR. FRICKE:

·3· · · Q· ·So, they may have had some propofol but we

·4 don't have much evidence of it being there at this

·5 time.

·6· · · A· ·At this time, this earlier date.

·7· · · Q· ·October of 2019, the records from Tammy

·8 Hankins signed by her indicate that she used

·9 prescription tablet -- patient-specific tablet

10 medication for procedural sedation at Vita Spa.

11· · · · · Is that correct?

12· · · A· ·Correct.

13· · · Q· ·Okay.· And and for Patient B, Patient C --

14 Exhibit 3 -- Patient D -- Exhibit 4 -- Patient --

15 Exhibit 5, all of these in similar fashion.

16· · · · · And let's actually look at Patient D, which

17 is Exhibit 4., page 126.· Patient D, similar

18 operative report.· Is this right, Kim?

19· · · A· ·Yes, correct.

20· · · Q· ·What's significant about -- what kind of

21 procedure did this patient receive?

22· · · A· ·This patient received liposuction of the

23 abdomen and medial inferior upper arms.

24· · · Q· ·Okay.· So, let's just -- I'd like to show

25 you a short video from the videos we have.
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·1· · · · · (Video played.)

·2 BY MR. FRICKE:

·3· · · Q· ·Kim, you've obviously seen this video many

·4 times.

·5· · · · · What is Giselle Platfoot doing when she's

·6 reciting the telephone number in Spanish?· What do

·7 you understand that this video is being used for?

·8· · · A· ·It's being used to basically sell her

·9 services to the public on -- I believe that was

10 Facebook on this one.

11· · · Q· ·Okay.· So, is this an abdominal liposuction

12 procedure?

13· · · A· ·Yes, it is.

14· · · Q· ·Kim, in the hundreds of surgeries you

15 personally observed as a surgical tech, can they be

16 -- is this a kind of procedure that can be performed

17 without sedation?

18· · · A· ·This is a very painful procedure, so it

19 would be very difficult to nearly impossible to

20 perform this procedure without some sort of

21 sedation.

22· · · Q· ·And it would also be very unsafe to perform

23 it without sedation, correct?

24· · · A· ·That's correct.· I mean, you're in the

25 abdominal area.· If the patient were to move or

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 70
·1 flinch, it could result in perforation of bowels.

·2· · · Q· ·Okay.· I'll state for the record this is

·3 Exhibit -- it's the 14th in the series of videos.

·4· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· So --

·5· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Video No. 14, Exhibit 51.

·6· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Ms. Platfoot was

·7 talking --

·8 BY MR. FRICKE:

·9· · · Q· ·I'm sorry.

10· · · · · Kim, whose voice is on the tape?

11· · · A· ·Giselle Platfoot.

12· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Did we establish who

13 is doing the procedure?

14· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Not yet.

15· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Okay.

16 BY MR. FRICKE:

17· · · Q· ·Kim, this operating suite, to the extent

18 you can see it, where is this operation being done?

19· · · A· ·It appears to be done in the Rainbow

20 location.

21· · · Q· ·And this is the operating room that you saw

22 on your subsequent investigation -- I'm sorry.

23 We're trying to rush -- on a subsequent date you

24 inspected the Vita Spa facility.· Let's talk about

25 that day.
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·1· · · · · When did you -- you went in for a followup

·2 inspection to Vita Spa.· Is that correct?

·3· · · A· ·That's correct.· And we had concern that

·4 there was the use of propofol at this time now so I

·5 went with the Bureau of Healthcare Quality

·6 Compliance two inspectors on June 23, 2021, to

·7 inspect the facility.· We arrived at 10:00 in the

·8 morning, which is when Vita Spa opened.

·9· · · · · When we arrived we discovered that the

10 procedure room had been moved to the back of the

11 facility.· There was a patient prepped and draped,

12 ready for procedure.· The RN informed us that a

13 liposuction procedure for that patient was scheduled

14 for that morning, which would be performed by

15 Dr. Maryann Phillips.· The procedure room was

16 prepped and ready for that procedure including the

17 bed being prepped, the liposuction machine being

18 prepped, the cannulas on the mayo stand and also two

19 vials of propofol on the mayo stand.· One was full

20 and one was empty, already being pre-drawn into

21 syringes.

22· · · Q· ·I'll skip forward.· You see the date here

23 where my cursor is highlighting on the top right?

24 This is February 16th.· It would be this year 2021.

25· · · · · Is that correct?
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·1· · · A· ·Correct.

·2· · · Q· ·I'll skip forward in the video.

·3· · · · · (Video played.)

·4 BY MR. FRICKE:

·5· · · Q· ·Kim, who is that speaking?

·6· · · A· ·Her name is Kimberly Kujat, K-u-j-a-t.

·7 That's an RN employed by Vita Spa.

·8· · · Q· ·Okay.· And you just heard her say that the

·9 patients are sleeping and they're not feeling any

10 pain.· Is that correct?

11· · · A· ·That's correct.

12· · · Q· ·I'll play that again.

13· · · · · (Video played.)

14 BY MR. FRICKE:

15· · · Q· ·Okay.· I'll play you another video.· This

16 is Exhibit 38, Video No. 1.

17· · · · · (Video played.)

18 BY MR. FRICKE:

19· · · Q· ·So, Exhibit 38, Video No. 1, Kim, who is

20 that in the video on picture right now?

21· · · A· ·That's Tammy Hankins.

22· · · Q· ·Is Tammy Hankins with her hands grasping a

23 syringe full of, as she represented, plasma.· What

24 kind of procedure is she doing here, Kim?

25· · · A· ·She's doing what's called a PRP injection.
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·1 It is where you withdraw blood from the patient, you

·2 spin it in what's called a centrifuge and it

·3 separates plasma from red blood cells, and then it's

·4 re-injected into the patient's body.· It's used for

·5 multiple procedures, for Vampire facelift, for hair

·6 regrowth, and here she's injecting the buttocks for

·7 a fuller look, to plump it up.

·8· · · Q· ·Kim, what's the date of this video's

·9 posting on Facebook?

10· · · A· ·October 3rd, 2019.

11· · · Q· ·Thank you.· Did Ms. Hankins pictured in

12 this video have a license to practice medicine at

13 this time?

14· · · A· ·She did not have a license to practice

15 medicine at this time.· And that facility that she's

16 in right there, that's the prior location of Vita

17 Spa before it moved to the new rainbow facility.  I

18 can determine that by the floor and the cabinets

19 that are behind her.· We conducted the inspection at

20 that other facility.

21· · · Q· ·And that facility was not a licensed

22 medical facility either, correct?

23· · · A· ·That's correct.

24· · · Q· ·It was a cosmetology establishment,

25 correct?
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·1· · · A· ·Correct.

·2· · · Q· ·So, obviously, this is kind of a dumb

·3 question, but to put a fine point on it, one can

·4 post a video later in time.· I could make a video

·5 now and post the video later, correct, on Facebook?

·6· · · A· ·You can, yes.

·7· · · Q· ·But I can't take a video in the present and

·8 post it in the past, correct?

·9· · · A· ·That's correct.

10· · · Q· ·So, one can deduce from this video that Ms.

11 Hankins is being -- is captured here on film

12 practicing medicine on or before October 3rd,

13 2019.· Is that correct?

14· · · A· ·That's correct.

15· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Again, because I'm

16 not informed about these things, that's a

17 cosmetology center.· But how do you establish that's

18 a medical procedure and not a cosmetic procedure?

19· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Well, the definition of the

20 practice of medicine is found at NRS 630.027, I

21 believe.· It's the diagnosis, treatment of human

22 patients with those skills.

23· · · · · I can also direct you to the cosmetology

24 statute which specifically prohibits invasive

25 procedures and the practice of medicine.
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·1 Cosmetologists are not permitted by law to do that.

·2 They can't, in fact, use the term "medical" by their

·3 own statute in their practice.· They can't say, I'm

·4 a medical cosmetologist or a medical physician.

·5· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· I'm just trying to

·6 pin down there's a distinction between what she's

·7 doing.· It's not a cosmetic procedure.· I wanted to

·8 establish for purposes of my ruling that that is a

·9 medical procedure.

10· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· I'm sorry.· Let me clarify

11 even further.· It may be a cosmetic procedure, but

12 it is not a cosmetological procedure.· Cosmetology

13 is defined under the cosmetology statute as hair --

14 doing hair, doing makeup, basically handling the

15 follicular and the tissues of the body, only the

16 epidermis and higher, and they are specifically

17 prohibited from going below the epidermis in any

18 way--

19· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Okay.

20· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· -- performing any kind of

21 invasive procedure.· That's specifically laid out in

22 the cosmetology statute.

23· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· That's the gap I

24 needed.· Thank you.

25· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Sure.· So, it is a cosmetic
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·1 procedure but not a cosmetological one.

·2· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you.

·3 BY MR. FRICKE:

·4· · · Q· ·Kim, we've checked with the cosmetology

·5 board.· Tammy Hankins is not a cosmetologist either.

·6· · · · · Is that correct?

·7· · · A· ·She does not hold an esthetician license or

·8 a cosmetology license, correct.

·9· · · Q· ·In your opinion is Ms. Hankins committing a

10 crime on this video?

11· · · A· ·Ms. Hankins is committing a crime by

12 practicing medicine without a license in the state

13 of Nevada.

14· · · Q· ·Thank you.· Now, that was a Facebook video.

15· · · · · Exhibit 47, what does this show, Kim?

16· · · A· ·This is showing procedures performed at

17 Vita Spa as a form of advertisement.

18· · · Q· ·This is Giselle Platfoot's Vita Spa

19 Facebook page?

20· · · A· ·That's correct.

21· · · Q· ·So, just in context, skip forward because I

22 scrolled for quite a while.

23· · · · · (Video played.)

24 BY MR. FRICKE:

25· · · Q· ·The video I showed you before, Video No. 1,
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·1 Exhibit 38, was found on this Facebook page there,

·2 also in line chronologically October 3rd, 2019.

·3· · · · · Is that correct?

·4· · · A· ·That's correct.

·5· · · Q· ·So, what can you deduce from that?

·6· · · A· ·That Tammy Hankins was videotaped on or

·7 before October 3rd, 2019, performing medical

·8 procedures without a license.

·9· · · Q· ·Kim, Patients F, G, H, I, and J all of

10 those records you have, those are medical records

11 obtained from Vita Spa.· Let me just be clear as to

12 which ones we're referring to.

13· · · · · So, Patients A through H, Exhibits 1

14 through 8, all of those medical records -- are they

15 all similar in that they show evidence of medical

16 procedures performed by Tammy Hankins during a

17 period where she didn't have a license to practice

18 medicine in the state?

19· · · A· ·That's correct.

20· · · Q· ·I want to focus your attention to a

21 curiosity in your investigation.· Exhibit 13, page

22 272, "Daily procedures."· What is this document?

23· · · A· ·This is a document that is a list of daily

24 procedures that shows procedures performed at Vita

25 Spa between January 1st, 2019, and
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·1 December 14th, 2020.· It has the patient's date of

·2 service, which is on the left, patient name, the

·3 billing code for the procedure that was performed,

·4 the description of that procedure, the provider is

·5 Tam, which is referring to Tammy Hankins, and the

·6 fee charged for that procedure.

·7· · · · · Although the date range is stated

·8 January 1st, 2019, to December 14th, 2020, the

·9 procedure list does not start until October 15th,

10 2019.

11· · · Q· ·But we already know that Ms. Hankins was

12 performing procedures before that time, correct?

13· · · A· ·That's correct.

14· · · Q· ·Or, I'm sorry.· You can conclude that.

15· · · · · But I want to clarify.· How did -- and when

16 did you receive this daily procedure log?

17· · · A· ·I had sent a subpoena out for additional

18 records and this was part of the records received.

19· · · Q· ·So, this would have been your subpoena that

20 you sent, which is Exhibit 36.· Is that correct?

21· · · A· ·That's correct.

22· · · Q· ·And so you asked for procedures from

23 January 1st, 2019, through March 6th, 2020.· And

24 in that stack of records that you received this was

25 kind of stuck in there somewhere.
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·1· · · A· ·That's correct.· I'm unsure as to why

·2 there's highlights on this page.· I did not mark

·3 this page at all.

·4· · · Q· ·So, perhaps this was somebody at Vita Spa

·5 who got a list, made a list of some kind and then

·6 sort of accidentally gave us the list?

·7· · · A· ·Had the list in the records, correct.

·8· · · Q· ·Now, and then you sent a subsequent

·9 subpoena, which is Exhibit 37, stating a slew of

10 patients by name.· This was sent by you in December.

11 I'm sorry.· When was this sent?· When did you send

12 that last subpoena to Vita Spa?

13· · · A· ·May 7th, 2021.

14· · · Q· ·So, why the -- May 7th, 2021.

15· · · · · Why the last subpoena?

16· · · A· ·Once I received that list of patient names

17 and procedures that had been done by Tammy Hankins,

18 I wanted to obtain the medical records for those

19 procedures.

20· · · Q· ·So, this record -- and I'll just skip

21 forward because I know we're -- unless you want to--

22· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· I don't want you to

23 feel rushed.

24 BY MR. FRICKE:

25· · · Q· ·Well, do the dates -- do the names of the
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·1 patients in Patients A through L, do their names

·2 appear on this daily procedure log?

·3· · · A· ·There's a couple of them that do appear but

·4 the earlier ones specifically are October 8th,

·5 9th, 10th time frame.· Their names are not

·6 listed on this.

·7· · · Q· ·Because those are the records that you got

·8 from Dr. Borromeo, correct?

·9· · · A· ·Correct.

10· · · Q· ·Sure.· So, does this daily procedure log

11 show procedures performed at least through

12 October 15th, 2019, through at the latest

13 October 20th, 2020?

14· · · A· ·The latest August 2020.

15· · · Q· ·August 20th, 2020.· $275,711 in total

16 fees charged.· Is that correct?

17· · · A· ·Correct.

18· · · Q· ·So, if we direct your attention to page

19 273, this is a log, the date cutting off at

20 November 22nd, 2019.· So, this is further evidence

21 that at least all patients 11/22/2019 and prior were

22 patients treated by Ms. Hankins when she didn't have

23 a license, correct?

24· · · A· ·Correct.

25· · · Q· ·Directing your attention to page 274 and
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·1 referencing this with the supervising agreement,

·2 which is Exhibit 29, June 8th, 2020, would have

·3 been the earliest date that Ms. Hankins would be

·4 permitted to practice medicine even with a license

·5 because she didn't have a supervising physician

·6 before that date.

·7· · · · · Therefore, any procedures performed before

·8 6/8/2020, that would be starting with this patient

·9 starting with a Z last name on June 6th, all of

10 the patients before that would be evidence of her

11 practicing medicine without a supervising physician,

12 correct?

13· · · A· ·That's correct.

14· · · Q· ·Just so we're clear regarding a couple of

15 the final allegations, can we look at Exhibit 9,

16 please, the records for Patient I.· This begins with

17 PMP on page 178.

18· · · · · So, just to clarify how the PMP works, is

19 it your understanding that the PMP is a record that

20 is kept by the Nevada Board of Pharmacy, that it's

21 information reported to it or to its system by the

22 pharmacies that do the dispensing of the

23 medications?· Is that correct?

24· · · A· ·That's correct.

25· · · Q· ·Okay.· And so on page 178, what does this
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·1 show?

·2· · · A· ·This shows the dispensing of alprazolam and

·3 oxycodone, acetaminophen to Patient EB.· The

·4 prescriber was Salvador.· The prescription, the

·5 alprazolam was written on June 1st, 2020,

·6 oxycodone written on June 1st, 2020, both of them

·7 sold on June 1st, 2020.· The pharmacy was Santa

·8 Maria Pharmacy.

·9· · · Q· ·This would be the same Santa Maria Pharmacy

10 referenced in Dr. Borromeo's response to the

11 allegation letter from the pharmacy board wherein he

12 says that he wrote these prescriptions for invasive

13 cosmetic procedures to be performed by staff at Vita

14 Spa.· Is that correct?

15· · · A· ·That's correct.· And if I may take it one

16 step further.· On page 174 the patient's name and

17 address is listed on that prescription, meaning that

18 3225 South Rainbow Boulevard is actually the Vita

19 Spa address.

20· · · Q· ·What does that indicate?

21· · · A· ·That indicates that the pharmacy delivered

22 the prescription to Vita Spa.

23· · · Q· ·And then on page 185 we get into patient

24 records.· Are these patient records that you

25 obtained from Vita Spa pursuant to your subpoena?
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·1· · · A· ·Yes.

·2· · · Q· ·And we see a different type of form, but

·3 this contains similar information that was in the

·4 operative report and prescription information for

·5 Patient A, correct?

·6· · · A· ·Yes, correct.

·7· · · Q· ·And so it says to the top left,

·8 "Alprazolam, 1 milligram" with "Xanax script" --

·9 scratched out.· "Percocet" scratched out.

10 "Oxycodone, acetaminophen," the trade name of that

11 is Percocet, Kim?

12· · · A· ·Yes, correct.

13· · · Q· ·It says at the bottom, "Procedure,

14 liposuction with grafting to breasts."· It describes

15 the procedure a little bit more.

16· · · · · Would that be a procedure -- we didn't see

17 fat grafting in the video, but would this be that

18 kind of procedure that we saw in Video No. 10,

19 Exhibit 47.· Was it that kind of procedure?

20· · · A· ·That's correct.· The only difference with

21 this one is, once they removed the fat, they will

22 take the fat and transfer it back into another area.

23 In this case it would have been the breast.

24· · · Q· ·That plasma fat grafting, that could be as

25 shown in the video of Ms. Hankins doing that
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·1 injection.· Is that correct?

·2· · · A· ·That's correct.

·3· · · Q· ·That's fat grafting or plasma injection,

·4 correct?

·5· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· That was Exhibit 38.

·6· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Yes, Exhibit 38, Video No. 1.

·7 BY MR. FRICKE:

·8· · · Q· ·Because it says in here on page 185,

·9 "Abdomen, upper and lower, 3.2 liters, aspirating

10 2000 cc's fat, 1400 cc's."

11· · · · · So, "tumescent."· What does that mean here,

12 tumescent?

13· · · A· ·Tumescent is where they typically will

14 inject epi-lidocaine to numb the region where they

15 will perform the procedure.

16· · · Q· ·So we're clear, you have Dr. Borromeo

17 stating that the prescriptions that he signed for

18 Ms. Hankins are for the purposes of procedural

19 sedation.· You have alprazolam and oxycodone,

20 acetaminophen, Percocet being prescribed, delivered

21 directly from Santa Maria Pharmacy to Vita Spa being

22 administered onsite by Ms. Hankins.

23· · · · · What I'm saying here, does this comport

24 with your understanding of what the records show

25 you?
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·1· · · A· ·Yes.· In fact, you can even see that

·2 there's a time of medication given.· It looks like

·3 it's 2:27 a.m. and then again at 9:48.

·4· · · Q· ·Where is that?· On page 185?

·5· · · A· ·That's correct.· So, it's right underneath

·6 the list of medications, time of medications given.

·7· · · Q· ·So, let's -- they're writing prescriptions

·8 for patient-specific medication.· Is that correct?

·9· · · A· ·Correct.

10· · · Q· ·They're having the pharmacy deliver it

11 directly to Vita Spa.· Is that correct?

12· · · A· ·Correct.

13· · · Q· ·They're administering it, even recording

14 the time they're administering it.· Is that correct?

15· · · A· ·Correct.

16· · · Q· ·And in your experience as an investigator

17 and as a surgical technician performing an abdominal

18 liposuction, is that a procedure that could be

19 performed without sedation?

20· · · A· ·In my professional opinion, no.

21· · · Q· ·We have additional records showing

22 additional procedures with respect to Patients J as

23 well as -- all showing similar procedures.

24· · · · · Do we have in here evidence records of

25 Botox and dermal filler injections Kim?
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·1· · · A· ·Correct.

·2· · · Q· ·And why is it a problem that Ms. Hankins

·3 was injecting Botox and dermal fillers without a

·4 license and without a supervising physician?

·5· · · A· ·Botox and fillers are dangerous drugs and

·6 she should not be in possession of dangerous drugs

·7 without a license.

·8· · · Q· ·In addition, is it a crime for an

·9 unlicensed person to inject Botox and dermal

10 fillers?

11· · · A· ·Yes, it is.

12· · · Q· ·Who is authorized under Nevada law to

13 inject Botox and dermal fillers?

14· · · A· ·An individual with a license to practice

15 medicine in the state of Nevada and has a CS

16 license.

17· · · Q· ·Okay.· So, specifically that would be a

18 doctor, a licensed and supervised PA, or an APRN,

19 also podiatrists and dentists.

20· · · · · But is it your understanding that those are

21 the people authorized to inject Botox and dermal

22 fillers?

23· · · A· ·Correct, as well as osteopathic doctors.

24· · · Q· ·And osteopaths, yes.· Sorry.

25· · · · · So, at this point in your investigation
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·1 we're going back to about December 2020, you have

·2 the daily procedure log, Exhibit 13, showing

·3 $275,000 worth of procedures performed by Ms.

·4 Hankins.

·5· · · · · Do you have, Kim, records in addition to

·6 the records that we have -- just we cited here in

·7 our case?

·8· · · A· ·Yes.· I have many, many records other than

·9 what is cited in this case.· Because of the fact

10 there was additional providers who provided

11 procedures and additional records for Tammy Hankins

12 for providing procedures?

13· · · Q· ·Roughly speaking, how many patient records

14 do you have that demonstrate Ms. Hankins -- similar

15 to these -- Ms. Hankins providing medical -- sorry

16 -- practicing medicine without a license or a

17 supervising physician?

18· · · A· ·Over 30.

19· · · Q· ·And those are just the ones we have records

20 for.· Is that correct?

21· · · A· ·Correct.

22· · · Q· ·Did we receive a record for every single

23 patient on that daily procedure log?

24· · · A· ·No, we did not.

25· · · Q· ·So, upon -- let's just -- you have the
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·1 daily procedure log, you have spoken to Dr. Borromeo

·2 personally, you have obtained records from Spring

·3 Valley Hospital showing perforated patient on an

·4 operation performed by Ms. Hankins, you have

·5 obtained records directly from the pharmacies,

·6 you've pulled PMPs directly for each patient.· You

·7 have all of this in your hands in December 2020 and

·8 all of this evidence, as you already testified, of

·9 Ms. Hankins' unlicensed practice, malpractice, et

10 cetera, what did you do then?

11· · · A· ·This case was very broad, had a lot of

12 different scenarios and providers involved in it.

13 But specifically with Ms. Hankins I wanted to get

14 the charts reviewed by one of our medical reviewers

15 to get an opinion on this case.

16· · · Q· ·Okay.· Let me direct your attention to

17 Exhibit 30, a document dated December 15th, 2020.

18· · · · · What is this?

19· · · A· ·This is the initial allegation letter and

20 order that I sent to Tammy Hankins to the address

21 listed at the Board of Medical Examiners.

22· · · Q· ·And this is the 3753 Cherry Tree Boulevard

23 address in Arizona, correct?

24· · · A· ·That's correct.

25· · · Q· ·Now, the date is December 15th, 2020.
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·1 Again, this first patient, her initials "LC."· Is

·2 this the patient that was allegedly perforated five

·3 times with a hernia and went to Spring Valley

·4 Hospital, et cetera?

·5· · · A· ·That's correct.

·6· · · Q· ·And is this the patient you're currently

·7 trying to investigate the treatment of Ms. Hankins

·8 at this patient?

·9· · · A· ·That's correct.

10· · · Q· ·And in this allegation letter on page 355

11 you explained in your paragraph 11, "It is further

12 alleged that on March 6th, 2020, you appeared

13 before the Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners

14 for consideration of acceptance for application for

15 licensure.· The Board granted approval of your

16 license effective March 6th.· However, you were

17 deceptive with the Board as you had been practicing

18 medicine without a license in the state as early as

19 October 2019 and without a supervising physician,"

20 and then some specific patients are referenced

21 there.

22· · · · · Is that your understanding of the evidence

23 of what has occurred here with respect to Ms.

24 Hankins?

25· · · A· ·That's correct.
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·1· · · Q· ·Just for the record, didn't you have

·2 Exhibit 31?· Is this a second request that you sent

·3 on January 29th, 2021?

·4· · · A· ·Yes.

·5· · · Q· ·And then Exhibit 32, is that a third

·6 request that you sent on February 22nd, 2021?

·7· · · A· ·That's correct.· It was sent certified

·8 mail.

·9· · · Q· ·Thank you.· And then Exhibit 33, is this an

10 email that Donna Andrese received from -- I'm sorry

11 -- that was sent to Tammy Hankins at Yahoo.com?

12· · · A· ·That's correct.· I asked investigator Donna

13 Andrese to send all copies of allegation letters and

14 what were previously sent to Ms. Hankins as my email

15 was not giving me notification of delivery, so I

16 requested that he send it so we could have

17 notification and delivery that it was sent to the

18 email address that Tammy Hankins provided the Board,

19 which was Tammy Hankins at Yahoo.com.

20· · · Q· ·Thank you.· Exhibit 34, June 28th, 2021,

21 is that a second final request page 372?

22· · · A· ·That's correct.· This request was sent via

23 FedEx to the same address, 3753 Cherry Tree.

24· · · Q· ·And directing your attention to Exhibit 21,

25 this is -- is this the public licensing information

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 91
·1 that's available on our website, Kim --

·2· · · A· ·That's correct.

·3· · · Q· ·-- for Ms. Hankins?· Note the date is

·4 September 9th, 2021.· Is that the date this was

·5 printed out?

·6· · · A· ·Yes, it was.

·7· · · Q· ·Has -- did Ms. Hankins renew her license in

·8 June of 2021?

·9· · · A· ·Yes, she did.

10· · · Q· ·And during that renewal she would have

11 provided her updated address and contact

12 information.· Is that correct?

13· · · A· ·That's correct.

14· · · Q· ·Showing her initial license date and her

15 address on Cherry Tree Lane.· Is that correct?

16· · · A· ·Correct.

17· · · Q· ·Exhibits 22 and 23, that's licensing

18 information for Vita Spa.· Is that correct?

19· · · A· ·That's correct.· Exhibit 22 is from the

20 secretary of state website.

21· · · Q· ·Showing who the owners of the business are,

22 et cetera, and then Exhibit 23 is the Clark County

23 business licensing information.

24· · · A· ·That's correct.· For Vita Spa LLC.

25· · · Q· ·And what license category is Clark County
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·1 licensing Vita Spa?

·2· · · A· ·Cosmetology establishment.

·3· · · Q· ·What is its current status as of

·4 September 9th, 2021?

·5· · · A· ·License is suspended.

·6· · · Q· ·Is it your understanding -- what is your

·7 understanding of what's currently occurring with

·8 respect to Clark County's business license of Vita

·9 Spa?

10· · · A· ·Clark County business license suspended her

11 license.· They conducted an investigation and they

12 will hold a hearing regarding her license and

13 whether or not to reactivate it.· They did deny her

14 application.· She submitted an application to change

15 it over to a medical facility.

16· · · Q· ·Okay.· Exhibit 20, page 307, are these the

17 minutes of the board meeting that occurred on

18 March 6th, 2020?

19· · · A· ·Yes, it is.

20· · · Q· ·Were you present at that board meeting?

21· · · A· ·Yes, I was.

22· · · Q· ·Just to clarify, on March 6th, 2020, that

23 meeting was held in Reno but it was teleconferenced

24 to Las Vegas.· Is that correct?

25· · · A· ·That's correct.
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·1· · · Q· ·So, you were present in Las Vegas for the

·2 conversation that occurred between Ms. Hankins and

·3 the board members.· Is that correct?

·4· · · A· ·That's correct.

·5· · · Q· ·Was this -- were these minutes ratified at

·6 a subsequent meeting by the board?

·7· · · A· ·I believe they were but for a different

·8 provider.

·9· · · Q· ·I'm sorry.· So, the board --

10· · · A· ·Please ask your question again.

11· · · Q· ·So, the meeting minutes are produced

12 following the meeting and then are reviewed and

13 approved by the board members and then ratified at a

14 subsequent meeting.· Is that correct?

15· · · A· ·That's correct.

16· · · Q· ·And just to the extent that it matters,

17 there is the minutes of the conversation between Ms.

18 Hankins and the board found at page 318.

19· · · · · Is that correct?

20· · · A· ·Correct.

21· · · Q· ·You've -- have you reviewed these minutes?

22· · · A· ·Yes, I have.

23· · · Q· ·Do these minutes comport with your

24 understanding of the conversation between Ms.

25 Hankins and the board members?
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·1· · · A· ·Yes.

·2· · · Q· ·Specifically in the second paragraph or

·3 sentence, the doctor stated Ms. Hankins had not

·4 practiced clinical medicine since 2013 due to legal

·5 actions which resulted in her incarceration.

·6· · · · · And then Ms. Hankins said she wants to move

·7 to Las Vegas and has found a job at a medical spa

·8 there, but it is contingent upon her obtaining a

·9 license in Nevada.

10· · · · · Do those minutes comport with the

11 conversation of what Ms. Hankins stated to the

12 board?

13· · · A· ·Yes.

14· · · Q· ·Can you elaborate at all about what she

15 said?

16· · · A· ·In essence, Ms. Hankins was stating that

17 she was going to be working for the Vita Spa or a

18 spa that she had already been offered a position but

19 she was waiting to get her medical license approved

20 by the Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners.

21· · · · · And I do know that she had submitted prior

22 to this an application or, I should say, an

23 agreement for a supervising physician with another

24 provider not mentioned.· However, that application

25 was not accepted by the board because she had not
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·1 received her license at that time.

·2· · · Q· ·And that's the doctor that's listed in the

·3 licensing information contained at Exhibit 28.· So,

·4 Exhibit 28, page 348, is this the internal licensing

·5 information we have on file for Ms. Hankins?

·6· · · A· ·That's correct.

·7· · · Q· ·This comes from our system referred to as

·8 "Open Regulate."· Is that correct?

·9· · · A· ·Yes.

10· · · Q· ·And the date is 9/13, showing her current

11 address, telephone number.· Page 349 at the bottom

12 there, the email that we have in our system for her,

13 is that Tammy Hankins at Yahoo.com?

14· · · A· ·Yes.

15· · · Q· ·That's the same email you used to try to

16 communicate the allegation letter to her?

17· · · A· ·Yes, it is.

18· · · Q· ·And then on page 350, that earlier attempt,

19 I guess, at having an association, is that with a

20 doctor -- we'll just say initial CC that's shown

21 there, but it shows the date of the association, the

22 date of dissociation the same day.

23· · · · · What does that indicate to you?

24· · · A· ·That's correct.· And I also verified with

25 Licensing that they submitted an application with
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·1 the board for a supervisory physician agreement,

·2 however, it was denied because she didn't have a

·3 license so, in fact, it was never enacted.

·4· · · Q· ·Right.· So, that's an accounting entry for

·5 the fact that there was some sort of an attempt to

·6 associate with the doctor when she didn't have a

·7 license.

·8· · · A· ·Right.

·9· · · Q· ·Above that, the date of association in our

10 system shows Dr. Borromeo's June 10th.

11· · · · · Is that correct?

12· · · A· ·Yes.

13· · · Q· ·And the dissociation November 2nd, 2020.

14 That would have been the day we received that notice

15 of dissociation which was found in -- I believe it's

16 Exhibit 29.· Is that correct?

17· · · A· ·That's correct.

18· · · Q· ·Okay.· So, to sum up, is there anything

19 that we've discussed with regard to Ms. Hankins,

20 submit multiple violations of the Medical Practices

21 Act, unlicensed practice, criminal unlicensed

22 practice, have I missed anything, Kim?

23· · · A· ·I believe that you basically covered all

24 concerns of the investigation over this past year

25 plus that have transpired between Vita Spa and Ms.
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·1 Hankins in her treatment of multiple patients, being

·2 unlicensed, and practicing medicine without a

·3 supervising physician.

·4· · · Q· ·One last thing.· You did have a followup

·5 inspection of Vita Spa with Bureau of Healthcare

·6 Quality Compliance, correct?

·7· · · A· ·Correct.

·8· · · Q· ·When did you do that onsite inspection?

·9· · · A· ·June 23rd, 2021.

10· · · Q· ·And why did you do it at 10:00 a.m.?

11· · · A· ·That is when the facility opened.

12· · · Q· ·Okay.· And who -- you told us about this

13 interaction before.· Was the nurse you met Kimberly

14 Kujat?

15· · · A· ·No.· The nurse I meant was Kristin Mulling.

16· · · Q· ·Was she the nurse that was there prepared

17 to do the procedure that day?

18· · · A· ·Yes, she was.

19· · · Q· ·Once you informed -- at that time you

20 informed Vita Spa that they weren't a licensed

21 outpatient surgical facility, they weren't supposed

22 to be using propofol or any other form of sedation,

23 the Bureau of Healthcare Quality & Compliance

24 informed them of the same thing, correct?

25· · · A· ·That's correct.
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·1· · · Q· ·Did the Bureau of Healthcare Quality &

·2 Compliance send them a cease and desist letter?

·3· · · A· ·Yes, they did.

·4· · · Q· ·And let's be clear.· You literally saw a

·5 patient prepped and draped with an operating room

·6 ready to go with propofol on the mayo trays with

·7 syringes, with one syringe full and another vial of

·8 propofol full, one empty, the patient ready to go

·9 and they were waiting on a practitioner to show up.

10· · · · · Is that correct?

11· · · A· ·That's correct.· That was confirmed by

12 Ms. Mulling.

13· · · Q· ·Who is?

14· · · A· ·The RN present.

15· · · Q· ·And you obtained records subsequently of

16 that procedure.· Is that correct?

17· · · A· ·Yes, I did.· I saw the records that morning

18 and they were laid out in the procedure room and I

19 obtained a copy of the medical records.

20· · · Q· ·What do those records indicate?

21· · · A· ·The patient was sent home at the time that

22 we were there.· However, the records indicated that

23 -- which was confirmed later by the nurse who

24 performed the procedure, that the patient was

25 actually called back later that night.
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·1· · · · · Another nurse came in to help perform that

·2 project, Ms. Kujat, and that patient was put under

·3 sedation even after Giselle Platfoot had been

·4 informed that she cannot do that at Vita Spa.· The

·5 patient returned that evening and the liposuction

·6 procedure and fat transfer procedure was performed

·7 by use of propofol for sedation.

·8· · · Q· ·At Vita Spa.· But we don't believe that Ms.

·9 Hankins performed that procedure.· It was another

10 practitioner, correct?

11· · · A· ·Correct.

12· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Was there not an

13 anesthesiologist to address the propofol?

14· · · · · THE WITNESS:· The provider who actually

15 performed the procedure is an anesthesiologist, but

16 there's not another anesthesiologist present during

17 that procedure.

18 BY MR. FRICKE:

19· · · Q· ·So, to go back to the video we saw with

20 Kimberly Kujat sitting at the head of the patient

21 while the abdominal liposuction was going on -- I

22 mean, we have several other videos that show this

23 practitioner.· Who is the practitioner performing

24 those abdominal liposuctions?

25· · · A· ·The procedure being performed, abdominal
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·1 liposuction, most of those are Dr. MaryAnn Phillips.

·2 The RN is either Kimberly Kujat or Kristen Mulling,

·3 and there's videos also for Tammy Hankins performing

·4 the procedures.

·5· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Is Dr. Phillips an

·6 anesthesiologist?

·7· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· She is, but notably she's not

·8 a cosmetic surgeon.· But there's public record of

·9 the proceedings that are being -- to the extent it's

10 relevant, her license has been suspended and they've

11 conducted a summary suspension hearing on her.

12 BY MR. FRICKE:

13· · · Q· ·Why is it relevant that at Vita Spa -- now,

14 this would have been the third time that you had

15 inspected Vita Spa within a year.· Is that correct?

16· · · A· ·That's correct.

17· · · Q· ·And not only you, but investigators from

18 pharmacy board but also the Bureau of Healthcare

19 Quality & Compliance had all informed -- and you

20 personally witnessed -- Vita Spa staff, Giselle

21 Platfoot specifically, being told that they were not

22 to perform procedures under sedation, that they were

23 not supposed to have all of these dangerous drugs

24 and controlled substances, et cetera, et cetera, all

25 of your testimony.· You were personally there on
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·1 three occasions when those communications occurred

·2 to Ms. Platfoot, correct?

·3· · · A· ·That's correct.

·4· · · Q· ·And so even after that, you obtained

·5 medical records that showed that they performed a

·6 propofol sedation abdominal liposuction procedure

·7 that night under cover of darkness.

·8· · · · · Is that correct?

·9· · · A· ·That's correct.

10· · · Q· ·Okay.· So, in your years of working for the

11 medical board, have you ever seen a facility

12 operated in this manner with unlicensed

13 practitioners and this kind of glaring rebuke of the

14 authority of multistate agencies?· I know that's a

15 loaded question, but how do you feel about it?

16· · · A· ·I have conducted investigations

17 specifically with the unlicensed practice of

18 medicine of med spas where, once the facility is

19 notified, they immediately cease and don't attempt

20 to practice medicine incorrectly.· They make sure

21 they have proper licensure and they have a correct

22 medical director onsite.

23· · · · · Unfortunately, this facility continued to

24 disregard the authority, the regulations, statutes

25 and the laws and continued to perform medical
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·1 procedures on multiple patients, which I know of at

·2 least two, or if not more, resulted in bodily

·3 injury.· The one patient who initiated the initial

·4 complaint was serious bodily injury.

·5· · · · · In my professional opinion this behavior

·6 from Giselle Platfoot from Vita Spa, the providers

·7 and Tammy Hankins is extremely concerning.· Tammy

·8 Hankins did not respond to any of my allegation

·9 letters.· Therefore, she impeded upon my

10 investigation to obtain her side of the story and to

11 understand what happened and what transpired.

12· · · · · All I can go off of is the evidence I

13 obtained during my investigation, which supports the

14 evidence that Tammy Hankins was practicing medicine

15 without a license and Tammy Hankins was deceptive

16 with the board when she presented to get acceptance

17 of her licensure.· We have violations of the board

18 order for failing to respond to the allegations

19 despite being informed that the possession of

20 controlled substances to Giselle Platfoot on

21 multiple occasions, there were still dangerous drugs

22 and controlled substances available to unlicensed

23 individuals including Ms. Hankins.

24· · · · · Being a former licensee and a former PA in

25 Arizona, it is my understanding that Ms. Hankins
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·1 should know the rules and regulations including the

·2 pharmacy board laws and statutes.· She practiced

·3 medicine without a supervising physician.· She is in

·4 violation of multiple pharmacy board regulations

·5 which can be supported by the cease and desist order

·6 received by the pharmacy board.· She performed

·7 invasive procedures in a facility that was not

·8 licensed to perform those procedures.· That

·9 facility, Vita Spa, received a cease and desist as

10 well.

11· · · · · My other concern is there are multiple

12 patient injuries.· The patient that she performed

13 the liposuction procedure on which resulted in

14 perforation of her bowel five times plus a hernia,

15 she left that patient abandoned at the end of that

16 procedure.· She never followed up with that patient

17 and she never followed up with the multiple calls

18 from Spring Valley Hospital.

19· · · · · Therefore, I'm concerned that if Ms.

20 Hankins is allowed her license to be provided back

21 to her, that she will continue in what I would

22 consider devious behavior, and I don't believe that

23 she would just turn around and perform medicine in

24 the state of Nevada under our proper guidelines and

25 restrictions and statutory regulations.
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·1· · · Q· ·Thank you very much, Kim.· Two very minor

·2 points.

·3· · · · · In your experience as both a surgical

·4 technician and a board investigator, what equipment

·5 should a surgical operation like this have that Vita

·6 Spa lacked upon your multiple times that you were

·7 there to inspect the facility?

·8· · · A· ·The facility did not contain any type of

·9 crash cart other than the defibrillator.· They had

10 no intubation tubes.· They had no epinephrine.· In

11 fact, I specifically questioned Kristen Mulling

12 about that, as to why there was no crash cart.· Her

13 response was she had requested a crash cart multiple

14 times from Giselle Platfoot and Giselle Platfoot did

15 not want to pay for the medications needed.

16· · · Q· ·And so with respect to Ms. Hankins'

17 procedures, Ms. Hankins was using tablet opioids and

18 benzodiazepine to sedate the patients for these

19 invasive procedures, but you have no evidence that

20 they had the ability to revive the patient or

21 intubate the patient if there was an overdose or

22 some sort of pharmacological event.

23· · · · · Is that correct?

24· · · A· ·That's correct.

25· · · Q· ·I know you're not a physician, but you're a
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·1 surgical tech.· Is that dangerous?

·2· · · A· ·Yes, I would find it personally dangerous,

·3 yes.

·4· · · Q· ·Have you seen any evidence in your

·5 investigation of Ms. Hankins that she has any

·6 training whatsoever in performing invasive cosmetic

·7 surgeries?

·8· · · A· ·No.· Ms. Hankins has not provided any

·9 documents to support any certification or training

10 or documentation in cosmetic procedures including

11 liposuction procedures.· In addition, her

12 supervising physician for a time, Dr. Borromeo is a

13 cardiologist.· As her supervising physician, he

14 needs to have some sort of training and

15 understanding of liposuction procedures as well.

16· · · Q· ·Right.· So, because the law requires it,

17 does it not, Kim, that if a physician assistant is

18 performing a procedure of any kind, that their

19 supervising physician be just as qualified or more

20 so to supervise that procedure?· Is that correct?

21· · · A· ·That's correct.

22· · · Q· ·And so I think you've covered it all.· Just

23 one last thing about our process, without going into

24 too much detail.

25· · · · · Can you describe the process of allegation

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 106
·1 letter, response, and med review, IC review that

·2 occurred.

·3· · · A· ·Sure.· Once an allegation or complaint is

·4 filed with the board, the investigator will start

·5 their investigation and they will submit an

·6 allegation letter and board order.· We are an agent

·7 of the board.· Therefore, we send out board orders

·8 for records and response or both.· We give the

·9 respondent 30 days to provide the records and

10 response.· We can grant an extension.

11· · · · · Once our investigation is complete, we

12 forward the case to the medical reviewer to obtain a

13 medical opinion on the care and treatment provided

14 to the patient.· The case is then forwarded to the

15 investigative committee who is made up of two

16 physicians and one public member who will make a

17 final decision on the case, which can be anything

18 from a closure to an internal letter of correction,

19 or they can request it goes to a peer review to be

20 reviewed by a peer review of that same specialty, or

21 it can even go out to an evaluator if you want

22 somebody to evaluate them for a psychiatric or

23 substance abuse.

24· · · Q· ·So, specifically, Ms. Hankins' refusal to

25 respond to these allegation letters, has it slowed
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·1 down your investigation?

·2· · · A· ·It did impede my investigation because I

·3 was not able to get her side of the story or able to

·4 understand what transpired while she performed these

·5 procedures.

·6· · · Q· ·Okay.· And is Ms. Hankins, in your opinion,

·7 a danger to the public?

·8· · · A· ·In my professional opinion Ms. Hankins has

·9 demonstrated a danger to the public and I'm

10 concerned she will continue to be a danger to the

11 public specifically if she's granted a license.

12· · · Q· ·One last thing.· You've spoken to Tammy

13 Hankins personally, haven't you?

14· · · A· ·I spoke to Ms. Hankins once.

15· · · Q· ·When did that conversation occur?

16· · · A· ·That conversation occurred -- I would have

17 to say early 2021.· I'd have to look at the date

18 specifically.· Oh, October 27th, 2021 --

19 October 27th, 2020, which was the date that we did

20 the onsite inspection and we spoke to Dr. Borromeo.

21· · · · · I left a message with Tammy on that date.

22 On November 3rd, 2020, Tammy returned my phone

23 call and verified her address with me and she

24 verified her email address with me.· I did inform

25 her that she was under investigation and there were
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·1 concerns and allegations.· She was aware of the

·2 patient to whom I was initially starting my

·3 investigation on and she also stated that she was

·4 aware that Dr. Borromeo terminated her supervising

·5 physician agreement with her and she was instructed

·6 that she could not perform medicine in the state of

·7 Nevada unless she had another supervising physician

·8 agreement in place.

·9· · · Q· ·Have you attempted to contact her since?

10· · · A· ·I did attempt to phone her one more time.

11 Her voice mail told me the voice mail was full and

12 couldn't take a message, and she has not returned

13 any of my calls.

14· · · Q· ·The number you contacted her on and you

15 received a call back and then on which you called

16 her on was the number that's her official number on

17 file with the board, correct?

18· · · A· ·That's correct.

19· · · Q· ·Okay.

20· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Thank you very much, Kim.  I

21 think I'll rest with that, unless you have any

22 questions, ma'am.

23· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· I don't.· Thank you.

24 Thank you, Ms. Friedman.

25· · · · · MR. FRICKE:· Thank you, Kim.
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·1· · · · · Very brief closing.· The evidence is

·2 abundant that Ms. Hankins has fraudulently

·3 prescribed controlled substances, that she has

·4 practiced medicine without a license, she's

·5 practiced medicine without a supervising physician,

·6 she performed dangerous, invasive cosmetic surgeries

·7 in a demonstrably unsafe facility without

·8 accreditation or permits.· The cosmetology practice

·9 established with its own business license was

10 suspended.

11· · · · · All of this corroborates our charges that

12 there are serious problems with the practice of

13 medicine and Vita Spa, that Ms. Hankins has

14 practiced medicine without the necessary knowledge

15 and training and skills to perform invasive

16 surgeries skillfully and safely and has injured

17 patients in doing it.· She's refused cooperation

18 with the board's ongoing investigation, including

19 the investigation of those seriously harmed by her

20 personally, and she lied to the board in an open

21 meeting.

22· · · · · She should not have a license now or in the

23 future.· When this case will be formally presented

24 to you in its entirety in a month, we'll go into

25 greater detail to the extent that's necessary.· But
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·1 we met our burden that there's a reasonable basis to

·2 continue the suspension of Ms. Hankins' license

·3 pending the conclusion of this hearing and final

·4 adjudication of the same.

·5· · · · · THE HEARING OFFICER:· Thank you.

·6· · · · · So, pursuant to NRS 630.326, if an

·7 investigation by the board regarding a physician,

·8 PA, and/or practitioner of respiratory care

·9 reasonably determines that the health, safety, or

10 welfare of the public or any patient served by the

11 licensee is at risk of imminent or continued harm,

12 the board may summarily suspend the license of the

13 licensee pending the conclusion of a hearing to

14 consider a formal complaint against the licensee.

15 The order of summary suspension may be issued only

16 by the board or an investigative committee of the

17 board.

18· · · · · That step has been undertaken and Ms.

19 Hankins' license has been suspended.· We are here

20 today on the basis of a hearing that Ms. Hankins is

21 entitled to have no later than 60 days after the

22 date on which the order is issued, unless the board

23 and the license mutually agree to a longer period to

24 determine whether a reasonable basis exists to

25 continue the suspension of the license pending the
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·1 conclusion of the hearing to consider a formal

·2 complaint against the licensee.

·3· · · · · As placed on the record earlier, the formal

·4 hearing in this matter is October 19th, 2021, at

·5 8:30.· I do find that there's a reasonable basis

·6 that exists to continue the suspension of Ms.

·7 Hankins' license pending that date.· The basis for

·8 that includes but is not limited to her prior

·9 criminal conduct which demonstrates her knowing

10 violation of the obligations as a licensee to which

11 she should know she's bound and which she has been

12 known to have violated previously indicating her

13 willful continued violation thereof.

14· · · · · She practiced extensively without a

15 license.· She did so unsupervised and in an

16 environment where none of the procedures required

17 for the safety and care of patients were routinely

18 followed by multiple people, including but not

19 limited to herself.· She practiced without

20 appropriate patient care, putting patients at risk

21 and danger.· She actually caused substantial bodily

22 harm for one particular patient.· She has

23 misrepresented her actions blatantly to the board.

24 She has hindered investigations and she's had no

25 contact with the board.· And while the board is
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·1 aware of her prior conduct, her actual whereabouts,

·2 other than knowing her address and contact

·3 information, are unknown.

·4· · · · · For those reasons and the others stated by

·5 Mr. Fricke on the record, I find that there's

·6 reasonable basis and will continue the suspension.

·7 That concludes the hearing for today.

·8· · · · · (End of proceedings at 11:50 a.m.)

·9· · · · · · · · · · · · ·-o0o-

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 113
·1 STATE OF NEVADA· · · · · )

·2· · · · · · · · · · · · · )· · ss.

·3 COUNTY OF WASHOE· · · · ·)

·4

·5· · · I, CHRISTINA MARIE AMUNDSON, a Certified Court

·6 Reporter in and for the states of Nevada and

·7 California, do hereby certify:

·8· · · That I was personally present for the purpose

·9 of acting as Certified Court Reporter in the matter

10 entitled herein;

11· · · That said transcript which appears hereinbefore

12 was taken in verbatim stenotype notes by me and

13 thereafter transcribed into typewriting as herein

14 appears to the best of my knowledge, skill, and

15 ability and is a true record thereof.

16

17 DATED:· At Reno, Nevada, this 8th day of October

18 2021.

19

20· · · · · · · /S/ Christina Amundson_____

21· · · · · · Christina Marie Amundson, CCR #641
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·1· · · HEALTH INFORMATION PRIVACY & SECURITY: CAUTIONARY NOTICE

·2· Litigation Services is committed to compliance with applicable federal

·3· and state laws and regulations (“Privacy Laws”) governing the

·4· protection andsecurity of patient health information.Notice is

·5· herebygiven to all parties that transcripts of depositions and legal

·6· proceedings, and transcript exhibits, may contain patient health

·7· information that is protected from unauthorized access, use and

·8· disclosure by Privacy Laws. Litigation Services requires that access,

·9· maintenance, use, and disclosure (including but not limited to

10· electronic database maintenance and access, storage, distribution/

11· dissemination and communication) of transcripts/exhibits containing

12· patient information be performed in compliance with Privacy Laws.

13· No transcript or exhibit containing protected patient health

14· information may be further disclosed except as permitted by Privacy

15· Laws. Litigation Services expects that all parties, parties’

16· attorneys, and their HIPAA Business Associates and Subcontractors will

17· make every reasonable effort to protect and secure patient health

18· information, and to comply with applicable Privacy Law mandates,

19· including but not limited to restrictions on access, storage, use, and

20· disclosure (sharing) of transcripts and transcript exhibits, and

21· applying “minimum necessary” standards where appropriate. It is

22 recommended that your office review its policies regarding sharing of

23 transcripts and exhibits - including access, storage, use, and

24· disclosure - for compliance with Privacy Laws.

25· · · · © All Rights Reserved. Litigation Services (rev. 6/1/2019)
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